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AMERICANA

RESTAURANTS

Americana Restaurants International PLC

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Company overview:

Americana Restaurants [nternational PLC and its
subsidiaries (together “Americana Restaurants™/
“Group™) are a leading and diversified, pan-
regional restaurant platform  operator, with
presence in 12 countries, across the MENA
region and Kazakhstan. Americana Restaurants
operates iconic global brands such as KFC, Pizza
Hut, Hardee's, Krispy Kreme and TGI Fridays,
along with proprietary brands such as Wimpy and
Chicken Tikka. Incorporated in Abu Dhabi
Global Marker (“ADGM™), Amencana
Restavrants  employs  more  than 40,000
employees. Americana Restaurants listed on the
Abu Dhabi Securitics Exchange ("ADX™) and
Saudi Stock Exchange (“Tadawul™) on 12
December 2022; in a first of its kind concurrent
dual listing in the UAE and KSA.

Diverse portfolio with presence across
calegories:

The Group operates 2,183 restaurants under a
porifolioc of 12 brands across key consumer
verticals and occasions, including key Cuick
Service Restaurant (QSR) categories (chicken,
burger and pizza). fast casual, casual dining,
indulgence and coffee concepts. As part of ns
growth strategy, in 2022, the Group also
successfully launched Pizza Hut in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia, Krispy Kreme in Jordan, and
Wimpy in the United Arab Emirates. We also
sigmed with Peet's Coifee to launch the brand in
the GCC markets of the UAE, Saudi Arabia,
Kuwait and Qatar: to tap into the region's
booming coffee market.

Outlook and strategy

Americana Restaurants’ near-term focus wall be
to leverage the strength of its platform o grow
penetration of existing brands, enter new
categories and geographic expansion by entering
new markets, We will also continue to build and
grow our digital footprint 1o provide supenor
CUSLOMEr EXPErence.

Members of the Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors consisis of seven MNon-
Executive Directors, three of whom ane
independent Directors, as follows:

Mohamed Al Rashed Alabbar

Dr. Abdulmalik Al-Hogail

Raid Abdullah Ismail

Kesn Singh

Tracy Ann Gehlan, Independent

Arif Abdulla Abdulrahman  Alharmi
Albastaki, Independent

¢ Graham Denis Allan, Independent

® @ & & & &

Current vear's resulis:

In 2022, Amencana Restaurants continued (o
maintain a strong revenue growth momentum,
The Group achieved USD 2,378.5 millien in
revenues during the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: USD 2051.7 million), resulting in
total net profit attributable to the sharcholders of
the Parent Company/MNet Parent  Inwvesiment
attributable 1o Former Parent Company of LISD
259.2 million (2021: USD 203.9 million). Total
assels increased to USD 134005 million as at 31
December 2022 (2021: USD 1,087.9 million).

Statement of disclosure (o anditors:

The Directors of Americana Restaurants certify
that as far as they are aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the Group's auditor is
unaware, and that they have taken all the steps
that they pught to have taken as Directors in arder
to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and (o establish that the Group's
auditor is aware of that information,

On behalf of the board,

%,
zaPo®
Mohamed Al Bashed Alabbar
Chairman
Americana Restaurants International PLC
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Americana
Restaurants International PLC

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Qur opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Americana Restaurants International PLC (the "Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) as at 31 December 2022, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consoclidated cash fiows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

What we have audited
The Group's consolidated financial statements comprise:

« the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,

= the consolidated statement of income for the year then ended;

« the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
« the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,;

= the consolidated statement of cash fiows for the year then ended; and

« the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (IS5As). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilifies for
the audit of the consolidated financial staternents section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) and the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Abu Dhabi Global
Market ("ADGM"). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code.

PricawaterhousaCoopers (branch of a Foreign Parinership), ADGM License no. 000000258
Al Khatem Tower, Abu Dhabi Global Market, 25th Floor, PO Box 45263

Aba Dhabi - United Arab Emirates

Tel: #8071 2 694 S800, fax: +871 2 6456610

WA, P DT T

Pricawaterhousaloopers is ragistarad in the Abu Dhabd Global Marked.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Americana
Restaurants International PLC (continued)

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, which describes the fact
that, Americana Restaurants Intermational PLC and its subsidiaries have not operated as a
separate group of entities for the period up to 27 June 2022, being the date of transfer of the
Americana Restaurants' business ("Restaurant Business”) from Kuwait Food Company
(Americana) K.5.C.C. inta the Group. Therefore, the consolidated financial statements include
the carve-out financial information of the Restaurant Business for the period from 1 January 2022
to 27 June 2022 and the comparative information for the year ended 31 December 2021, We
also draw attention to Mote 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, which details the basis
of preparation and carve-out adjustments applied. Qur opinion is not modified in respect of these
matters.

Qwr audit approach

Overview

Fey audit matters * Impairment assessment review for mon-financial asseis
o Measurement of lease liabilities and right of use assets

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the consolidated financial statements. In particular, we considered where
management made subjective judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting
estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherantly
uncertain, As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal
controls, including among other matters, consideration of whether there was avidence of bias that
represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consclidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separale opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit
mather

Impairment assessment review fornon-  We obtained the impairment assessment

financial assets carried out by management that was prepared

on the basis of the senior management
approved business plan and carried out the

The Group has non-financial assets as the following substantive audit p ; :

most significant balances in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022. The value of the property » Evaluated whether the methodology

and equipment, right of use assets, and used by management to calculate the
intangible assets are USD 269,844 thousand, recoverable amount for the cash
USD 417,564 thousand and USD 49,591 generating units complies with 1AS 38,
thousand respactively, ‘Impairmant of assets”
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Americana
Restaurants International PLC (continued)

Our audit approach (continued)
Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

Impairment assessment review for non-
financial assets (continued)

Management has evaluated the
recoverability of the carrying amounts of
these non-financial assels on a brand
(franchise) level for @ach country in which the
Group operates ("brand-country™).
Management has determined brand-country
to be the most appropriate cash generating
unit being the smallest unit generating
cashfiows that are largely independent of the
cash inflows generated by other
assels/groups of asseis.

Bazed on the impainment assessment
performed by management, a reversal of
impairment loss of USD 46 thousand has
been recognized for these non-financial
assets as at 31 December 2022

We considered this to be a key audit matter
as the evaluation of the recoverable amount
requires significant estimation and critical
management judgement in determining the
key assumptions that support the expected
future discounted cash flows of sach cash
generating unit and the utilisation of these
assets. The key assumptions include sales
growth rate, earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation, and amortisation ("EBITDA")
margins, and the discount rate.

Should management not meet the targets as
envisaged in the forecasted cashflows, there
would be a reduction in the available
headroom and, therefore, the possibility of
further impairment. A sensitivity analysis has
been performed with the resultant impact on
the consolidated financial statements and
disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

How our audit addressed the kKey auwdit
matter

» Assessed the appropriateness of the
identification of the cash generating
unit to be brand-country at which
level the impairmeant assessment has
been performed;

s Tested the mathematical accuracy of

the calculations included within
management's impairment
assessment;

« Traced the data inputs used in

management's assessment to the
relevant sources to ensure these are
accurate;

« Obtaned and analysed the
underlying assumptions used within

the impaiment assessment o
determine whether these are
reasonabla;

s Apalysed the sales growth rates and

EBITDA margins used in
management's  assessment for
reasonableness,

= Engaged our intermal wvaluation

experts to assess the discount rate
used by management in discounting
future cash flows to determine
whether these are reasonable and
supportable;

» Reviewed the sensitivity analysis
around the key assumptlions used by
management to assess the potential
impact on the recoverable amount of
the non-financial assels; and

» Assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures in note 4 to the
consclidated financial statements.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Americana
Restaurants International PLC (continued)

Qur audit approach (continued)

Key audit matters (confinued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Measurement of lease liabilities and
right of use assats

We reviewed management's accounting policies
The Group has recognised right of use and schedules for IFRS 16, 'Leases’ and carried
assets of USD 417,584 thousand and out the following substantive audit proceduras;
lease liabilities of USD 434, 759 thousand s Tested the completeness of the contracts
(USD 180,156 thousand as current accounted fnrag;tasas under IFRS 16.
liabilities and UE[J 274 603 thousand as « Assessed the IBR used in discounting the
non-current liabilities). lease liabilities as determined by

management for appropriateness.

Management have applied several « (Onasamples basis, we have:
judgements and estimates in applying o Inspected lease contracts to
IFRS 16 to its large volume of lease assess whether the relevant lease
agreements. The significant judgements data inputs into management's
include lease terms impacted by IFRS 16 calculations are accurate.
extension or termination options and o Performed a recalculation of the
determining the appropriate incremental lease liabilty and right of use
borrowing rates ("IBR") to use in asset balance and the related
discounting the lease liabilities. interest expense and depreciation
expense.
o Traced lease payments as per

We conzsidered this to be a key audit
matter given its significance to the
consolidated financial statements and
due to the estimatezs involved in
measuring the lease liabilties and related
right of use assets.

management’s IFRS 16
calculations to appropriate
supporting documeantation.

o Assessed whether management's
judgement on extensions or
termination oplions are
appropriate and justifiable.

Refer to note 12 to the consolidated « We assessed the adequacy of

financial statements. disclosures with reference to the

requiremants of IFRS 16 Leases,

How we tailored our group audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the
structure of the Group, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the
Group operates.

L]
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Americana
Restaurants International PLC (continued)

Other information

Managemaent is responsible for the other infermation, The other information comprises of the
Directors’ report (but does nof include the consclidated financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whather the other
information 5 materially inconsisient with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and thair
preparation in compliance with the applicable provisions of the ADGM Companies Regulation
2020, as amended, and the ADGM Companies Regulations (Intermational Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
missiatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
50,

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Americana
Restaurants International PLC (continued)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Dwur objectives are to obfain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 15As will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or ermor and
are considerad material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expacted
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with |SAs, we exercise professicnal judgment and maintain
professional sceplicism throughout the audit. We also:

« ldentify and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit proceduras responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement rasulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery,
intentional emissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal contral,

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accouniing policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncerainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
apinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concem,

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statemenis, including the disclosures, and whether the consclidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair
presantation.

= Dbtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, We are respansible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Americana
Restaurants International PLC (continued)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial stalements
{continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on cur independeance,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unkess law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expacted to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Reaport on other legal and regulatory requirements

Az required by the Abu Dhabi Global Market ("ADGM") Companies Regulation of 2020, as
amended, and the ADGM Companies Regulations (International Accounting Standards) Rules
2015, we report that:

» the consolidated financial statements have been prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the applicable requirements of the ADGM Companies Regulations of
2020, as amended, and the ADGM Companies Regulations (Intermnational Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015; and

o the information given in the Directors’ report is consistent with the consolidated
fimancial statements of the Group.

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers (ADGM Branch)
Mohamed Saad Kadiri

22 February 2023
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Americana Restaurants International PLC RESTAURANTS
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December

LS Daollars (0
Muolke iz 2021

ARSETS

Man-currenk assels

Property and equipmeni & 6% 544 21919
Right oof mse assels 13 417,564 151975
Luvan t0 & related gy 22 - 51200
Investimedil propemacs i SHT 9341
Ineangible assels 7 49.509] 42423
Drerivanive lnancksl insmnamem 4 B A0% 7.512
Dreferred 10 assel d.114 2.150
Todnl nom-currenl asels TREdHY 5, 7 30
Current nseeis

Inventories f 173826 107,297
Trade and other recetvables ] LR ] LR
Dhae from related parics 21 7 1,189
Lo to & relnied pany 22 = 12.Ri¥]
Drerivalive Tinancial fnstnsmen '] 23X I AT
Cash and cash equivalents 10 ik S0 172 5
Taotal eurrent assets SHE G 390,194
Total asseis 1,340,547 |.ORT 004
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Man=currend liahilities

Lease liahility 12 274,603 248,11
Provision for employees” emd of savice benelils 1% i VR Ve, ek
Traade and ofher payahles 14 51,252 S0, 195
Deferred gain on derivative fnancial insimamen ) 5684 1512
Deeferred 1ax liahikilaes 7 .
Tuinl non-current linhilities a2 TR 103
Current Habilities

Bank facilites il 18,592 7.073
Deferred galm on derivative financial instnames) 9 1.5TH 1.E7H
lLease linhdliy 12 16156 146,463
Income 1ax, znkat snd oiher deduciions payvable 7 13,055 12614
Trade and cther payshles 14 41,173 %2326
[rag o redaied parics 21 21841 23601
Provisions for kegal, tax and olker claims 15 20, 1R 12063
Total current liabilities 645584 S66.009
Totnl limbilities 1044, T S4B
Egjuity

Sharc capital 1% 168473 .
Accumwlaged net comipbution Trom the Former Farent Company - 146984
Revained carndngs 139,205 -
Forelgn curmency tanslabion reserve 123,113 (20.420)
Eguily atributshle 1o sharehol ders of the Farenl CompanyMer Paren

TIrvestement alribatable 1o the Former Parea Company 284,365 138 555
Mon-condrodling intenets 18 U0, 1EG 11,157
Tatal equity 295,751 139712
Tustal linbilities and equity 1,340,547 1087 914
“ [ ! ﬁ‘ @i ig o N gt

o
Harzh Bansal Aumarpal Sandhu Abdulmalik 41 Hogail Mohomed Ali Rashed Alabbar
Chiel Famancial Officer  Chiel Execuative Officer Viee Charrman Chairman

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidared lnancial staemens. 0



AMERICANA

Americana Restaurants International PLC RESTAURANTS
Consolidated statement of income for the year ended 31 December

U'S Dollars'000

MNote 2022 2021
Revenues 23 2.3THE4Y 2.051,747
Cost of revenues 24 (1,148,476} (970,351
Geross profit 1,230,071 108 1,39
Selling and marketing expenses 25 (7T3R,928) (679.603)
General and administralive expenses 6 (193,053) {1 76,989)
Chher income 16,569 15478
Monetary (loss)h'gain from hyperinflation 4 (1,521) 3,043
Reversal of impairment on non-financial assets 4 46 1,179
Met impairment allowance on Minancial assets % [248) (1,454)
Fair value gaims on derivative financial instrument 1,941 -
Tax claim charges I (12,534) -
Operating profit 292,643 243,050
Finance income 28 31,639 2208
Finance costs e (24,584} (23, 118)
Profit before income tax, zakat, and KFAS 271,698 222,140
Income tax, zakat, and contribution to Kuwait Foundation fisr
the Advancement of Sciences (“KFAS™) 31 {8,743} (15,7323
et profit Tor the year 261,955 206,408
Adiribuinble bo;
The shareholders of the Parent Company /Net Parent Investment
attributable 1o Former Parent Company 159216 203,917
Mon-controlling inferests 3,729 2.491
262,955 206,408
L5 Dollars
22 020
Earnings per share
Basic and dilwed earmings per share 20 003077 002421

The accompanying notes form an integral pant of these consolidated financial statements. 10



AMERICANA

Americana Restaurants International PLC RESTAURANTS
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the yvear ended 31 December

LIS Diollars" ({00
2022 2021
Net profit for the vear 261,955 205,408

Diher comprehensive income/{loss) liems
frews that will mot be reclassified subsequently to consolidaied
shafemiehl Q-,Ir FpEaRE
Remeasurement of employees’ end of service benefits (Note 13) B.5T9 436
Ttems thar may be reclassifled subsequently fo consolidared
sieemenl r{,lr FATCarE
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations

including the effect of kyperinflation (2,652) (7.698)
Total other comprehensive incomeloss) iems 5927 (7.261)
Total comprehensive income for the vear 168.882 1941, 146
Attributable to:

The sharcholders of the Parent Company/Met Investment

attributable to Former Parent Company 265,121 1505, 607

Non=comtroliing interests 3. 761 2,539
268,882 150, 14

The accompanying notes form an integral pan of these consolidated fnancial statementis, 11
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Americana Restaurants International PLC RESTAURANTS
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December

LIS Dollars 000
Mole 2032 2021

Cush flows from operating activities
Prafit before income tnx and rakat for the year 171658 I72].050
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 37 219,709 108,629
Provision for employees' end of service benelits, met of transfers {3, 19 LA 10,074
Impairmes allowsnes on fmancial asscs 8 248 454
Provision for ohsolete, show msoving, and defective inventorics L 1,580 1,387
Reversal of impairment of non-financinl assets 5712 (] (1.07%)
Loss on disposal of propenty and equipment and imangshle assets A4 1,24
Ciaim on rend Concessions {647 (65978}
Finance moome 1x (3629 {2,308}
Finunce cosd ] 34,584 23118
Recagnition of deferred gain on derivative finascial instrument in other (1578

ingoeme
Fair value grins on financial assets ot fir value through profit or loss (1341} .
Tax claim charges I 11534 .
Hy perin{lation impact 56 1,348
Oiperating cash fows befare changes in working capitsl SR 457,928
Paymenis of emplovees” end of service benefits I3 [10.686) (13.535)
Income lax paid 17 (17T (69T}
Chamges in working capial:
Trade and ather roceivabies (11,581} (62}
Due froem relmed partics 52 493)
lsivensorics (67, 7RY) (10,2743
Due to related parties (1.842) I.264
Trade and other payables, other [ishilities and txves 9,785 41,992
Mt cash generated from operating activities 451,724 R R
Cash Aoy from myvesting actlvities
Parchase of property and equigment (128,143} (F0.510)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipmend 4,537 1438
Purchase of miangible asscts 7 {8, 192) {E.303)
Paymenis fior key moncy 12 i3, 78R} {1.A400)
Ierierest peceived on short lerm deposits LA 1208
Loass Lo o relased party b 1 00 (4, 00001}
Repaymsenis of loans by s related pany n 100 AHH) -
Nel cash used im investing activities 159,947) (161568
Cash fows from finencing sotivities
Paymenis of finance costs A5 {1455
Changes in nan-contralling intorests (3.216) (B26)
Acguissiion of adidilional shares i subsidiany from noi-controlling

interests {705y (14
Lense payvments — principsl clement {150,774 {129,640
Lense payments ~ mlerest on lease liabilities 121,207) (s el B
DNistrvhutions i the Former Parent Company 88,059 (1HEIT)
Movemenl in payments and rmpact of capital recrganization with the

Former Parent Company (25,903 (15,222
Procoeds from issuance of share capital [ )
Met cash used in Minancing activities [ 287,088) (307,867
Nel change in cash and cash cquivalents 106,855 [ 586)
Forcign curmessy translation differences %052 (4.275)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 166,923 171, 7%4
Cash and cash equivalenis st the end of the vesr 10 185,968 Ly, 523

The accompanying motes form an integral part of these consolidated fnancial stalements, 13



AMERICANA

RESTAURANTS

Americana Restaurants International PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR-ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

I GENERAL INFORMATION

Americana Restaurants Intermational PLC (formerly Americana Restaurants Lad) (“Americana Restaurants™ or
the “Parent Company™) is an Abu Dhabd Global Market registered entity that was incorporated on 27 May 2022
under registered number 000007712, The registered address is 2428 ResCowork06, 24th Floor, Al Sifa Tower,
Abu Dhabi Global Market Square, Al Maryah [sland, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates.

Americann Restaurants” business comprises operating and managing a number of restaurant chains/brands across
the region, The operations extend 1o the United Arab Emirates, Saudi Arabka, Kawail, Egypl, Qatar, Kazakhstan,
Bahrain, Jordan, Oman, Lebanon. Morocco, and Iraq operated by the various subsidiaries of Americana
Restaurants, Americana Restaurants’ business has been operating since 1969, [t was owned and operated by
Kuwait Food Company (Americana) K.5.C.C. ("KFC™ or the “Former Parent Company'™) which is 93.42% owned
by Adeptio AD Investments Lid (the “Intermediate Paremt Company™). On 2 June 2022, the Board of Directors
of KFC approved the transfer of Americana Restaurants’ business (“Restaurant Business™) and its entities as
detailed in Note 32 to Americana Restaurants (logether referred 1o as “the Groap™) to be effective from 27 June
2022, On 29 August 2022, KFC transferred ifs sharcholding in Americana Restaurants to the Intermediate Parent
Company, following the approval of the Board of Directors of KFC and KFC shareholders” approval m the
General Assembly,

On 2 November 2022, the Intermediate Parent Company announced its intemtion o Moat a 30% shareholding of
s mvestment in Americann Restaurams on the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange ("ADX™) in the United Arab
Emirates and on the Sawdi Stock Exchange (~Tadawul™) in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia through an Initial Public
Oifering (IR0}, pursuant to the resolution of the sharcholders of Amencana Restaurants. The trading of the
shares commenced on 12 December 2022,

Subsequent 1o the IPO, the Intermediate Parent Company contimuees 10 own a majority 66.03% investment in the
Group (previously 96.03%). The Intermediate Parent Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Adeptio AD
Holdings Lad (the “Ultimate Paremt Company™), The Ultimate Parent Company s equally owned by Mr.
Mohamed Al Rashed Alabbar and the Saudi Company for Gulf Food Investments (“Gulf Food Investments™), a
subsidiary of the Pablic Investment Fund of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, being the “Ultimate Sharcholders®.

The consolidated financial statements were approved for issee by the Board of Directors on 22 Februany 2023,
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™) and interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (“IFRS 1C7)
applicable 10 companies repoming under [FRS. The consolidmed financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost convention, unless otherwise stated in the accounting policies.

These consolidmed financial statements comiprise the carve-out financial information of the Restaurant Business
for the period from | January 2022 to 27 June 2022 and the consolidated financial information of the Group
{primarily comprising the Restaurant Business) for the period from 28 June 2022 1o 31 December 2022, The
comparative information for the year ended 31 December 2021 represents the carve-oat financial information of
the Restaurant Business since the Group has operated as part of KFC until 27 Junc 2022, and not as a separate
group of companies.

The following summarises the accounting and other principles applied in preparing the carve-out financal
information for the year ended 31 December 2021 and for the period from 1 January 2022 to 27 June 2022,

The carve-out financial statements for the respective periods mentioned above represents consolidation of all the
assels, labilities, revemees and expenses of Americana Restaurants as listed in Note 32 by applying the principles
underlying the conselidation procedures of IFRS 10 *Consolidated Financial Sttements™, subject to the following
carve-out adjustments;

& Transfer ofthe separately identifiable assets and liabilities of the Kuwai restaurants business which was part
of KFC under a Business Transfer Agreement (“BTA™);

#  Transfer of directly attributable income, costs and liabilities specifically in relstion 1o Restaurants Business
historically recorded in KFC;
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AMERICANA

Americana Restaurants International PLC RESTAURANTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR-ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
{conhnued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
21 Basis of preparation (continued)

= Removing certain shared costs recorded historically by Kuwait Food Co. Americana LLC (“UAE
Restaurants”™) which were incurred 1o suppon operations of other businesses of KFC and hence did not relate
1o the Restawranis Business. These allocated costs have been eliminated on a systematic basis representing
the estimated usage of these services by the Restauranis Business and other operations not pant of the
Restaurant Business. The various allocation methods are described in Mote 4;

= Removing the financial information peraining to the investments of the Egyptian Company for International
Touristic Projects ("ECITP”) in certain entities of KFC's food business which are not part of the Restawrants
Business and which were disposed off by ECITP for the year ended 31 December 2021 ; and

*  Removing the fnancial information pertaining 10 the investments of United Food Company LLC (“UFC”) in
a certain entity of KFC’s food business which is not part of the Restauranis Business and which was disposed
off during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The comparatives of the consolidated statement of financial position as a1 31 December 2021 represents the carve-
oul of the Restaurants Business and its enfities as detailed in Note 32 and incledes the Former Parent Company’s
assets and lkabalitics that are specifically identifiable or otherwise attributable to Americana Restaurants.,

Cash balances of the Former Parent Company that are specifically idemifiable and atnribuable to Amencana
Restauranis have been incheded as part of the carve-out financial information for the comparatives of the
consolidated financial siatements as a1 31 December 2021,

All revenwes and costs associated with Americana Restaurants are included in the carve-ouwt financial information
that are included in the consolidated financial saements as comparatives for the vear ended 31 December 2021
and for the pericd from 1 January 2022 to 27 June 2022 with certain expenses incheding staff costs, selling and
mirrkeling expenses and general and administrative expenses, asociated with Americana Restaurants being
allecated in the carve-owl financial informatien. These represent certain corporate and shared service function
historically provided by the Former Parent Company, mcluding, bt not Hmited w, execunive oversight,
accounting, treasury, human resources, procurcment, information technolegy, marketing, and other shared
services, These were allocated 1o Americana Bestaurants on a sysiematic basis representing the estimated usage
of these services by the Restaurants Business. The various allocation methods are described in MNote 4.

Transactions and balances with related parties in the normal course of business were incheded in the carve-ow
financial imformation. All mtercompany balances and fransactions within Americann Restaurants enfities were
Tully eliminated.

Intercompany balances between the carve-out entities ond KFC which were neither expected to be settled nor
collecied from KFC were included as pan of the Former Parent’s net investrent in the carve-oul financial
information. As such, the net effect of these balances were either waived in equity or recorded as an equily
contribution and reflected as *Movement in payments and impact of capital reorganisation with the Former Parent
Company” in the compartives of the consolidated stofement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December
2021, These imercompany balances have also been presented in the consolidated statement of cash Mows as a
financing activity for the vear ended 31 December 2021,

The carve-out financial information in respect of the comparatives for the year ended 31 December 2021 may not
necessarily be indicative of the financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Americana
Restourants, had it operated as a separate legal group during the periods presented. Americana Restaurants and
its subsidiaries have not operated as a separate group of entities for the period wp 1o 27 June 20022, the date of
transfer of the Restaurant Busimess infto the Group,

The transfer of subsidiaries o Americana Restauranis post restructuring represented a capital restructuring, being
a transfer of business under common contral. Therefore, the transfer represented the predecessor method of
gecounting and retrospective présentation is used, Americana Restawrants had no share capital and reserves in its
own right, Therefore, it was not meaningful to present share capital or an analvsis of reserves or components of
other comprehensive income, ather than foreign currency translation reserve which was separately identifiable.
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RESTALURANTS

Americana Restaurants International PLC

HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR-ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
[contmsed)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

11 Basis of preparation {continued)

A merger reserve was creailed in relation 1o the capital reorganization wherein the Hestaurant Business was
transferred from the Former Parent Company to Americana Restaurants during the yvear ended 31 December 2022,
The difference between the accumulated net contribution from the Former Parent Company and the consideration
provided to the Former Parent Company for the transfers (being the value of share capital issued) was initially
recorded as a merger reserve in equiry as it represented the difference between the carrying value of the net assets
transferred and the fair value of the consideration provided. At 31 December 2022, the Group has applied a
volumiary change in the accounting treatment to transfer the merger reserve of USD 1,608 thowsand 1o pant of the
retained eamings in the consolidated statement of changes i equity and applicd this change retrospectively.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires the use of cerain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management o exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The arcas invalving a higher degree of complexity, or anzns where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated fimancial statements are disclosed in Mote 4. These have been applied consistently for all peripds
presented.

2.2 Mew standards, amendments and inferpretations

The follewing new and revised IFRS, which became effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January
2022, have been adopted in these consolidated financial statements. The application of these revised IFRS, except
where stated, have not had any material impact on the amounts reported for the cumrent and prior periods:

s amendment o JAS 16 (effective 1 January 2022

e amvendment to IFES 3 (effective 1 January 2022

» amendment 1o 1AS 37 (effective 1 January 2022 and

» annual improvements o JAS 41, IFRS 1, IFRS 9 and IFRS 16 {effective | January 2022,

New and revised IFRS (ssued b nof vet effective and nof parly adopred

= [FRS 17, “Insurance contracts’ (deferred until accounting periods starting on | January 2023 );
e amendments to JAS |2 (effective | January 2023,

= amendments o 1AS | (effective | January 2023); and

e armendments to 1AS 8 (effective 1 January 2023),

The Group is currenily assessing the impact of these standards, and amendments on the future consolidated
financial statements of the Group and intends to adopt these, if applicable, when they become effective.

. Foreign currency translation

firk Frnctiomal and presertalion ClirPency

Bems included i the consolidated financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which each entity operates (‘the functional cureency’). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Uniled States Dollars ("USD™) which is the “presentation
currency™ of the Group and the currency in which managemen! measures the Group's performance and reports
its results.

i) Tramsactions aed balances

Foreign currency transactions are fransiated info the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the transkation at year-end exchange rates of monctary asscts
and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement of income.
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RESTAURANTS

Americana Restaurants International PLC
NOTES TO THE COXNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR-ENDED 31 DECEMEBER 2022
{continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

23 Foreign carrency translation (continweed)
=T) Tranzaciions and balances feontimed)

Foreign exchange gains and bosses that relate to borrowings are presented in the consolidated statement of income,
within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated statement of
income on a net basis within gencral and administrative expenses,

Mon-maonetary ifems that are measured at fair vahee in a foreign cumrency are translated using the exchange rates
ol the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair
value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

fed CFromps @rtiies

The results and financial postion of all the entities in the Group, none of which has the currency of a hvper-
inflationary economy (except for one begal emtity in Lebanon for the vear ended 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021, refer 1o Note 4) that have a functional currency different from the preseniation curmency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

{1} Assets and liabilities for each consolidated statement of financial position presented are translaied at the
closing rate at the date of that sandalone statement of financial position;

(i) Income and expenses for each consolidated statement of comprehensive income are ranslated al average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
mates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated al the raie on
the dates of the transactions); and

{iii} All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and in foreign currency
translation reserve in the consolidated statement of financial position.

When a directly held foreign operation is dispesed partially or in full, exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as part of the gain or loss on sale,
Gioodwill and Fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated ot the closing rate at the date of the consolidated statement of financial position.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.

2.4 Hyperinflation

The consolidated financial sistements (including comparative amounts) of Americana Restaurants’ entities whose
functional currencies are the currencies of hyperinflationary economies are adjusted in terms of the measuring
unit current at the end of the reporting period.

As the presentation currency of the Group is that of a non-hvperinflationary economy, comparative amounts are
not adjusted for changes in the price level in the current year. Differences between these comparative amounts
and current year hyperinflation adjusted equity balances are recognised in consolidaied other comprehensive
income. The carrying amounts of non-monetary assets and liabilities are adjusted 10 reflect the change in the
general price index from the date of acquisition 1o the end of the reporing period. An impairment loss s
recognised in the consolidated staement of income if the restated amount of @ non=monetary ilem excecds its
estimated recoverable amount. On initial application of hyperinflation prior period gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity under foreign currency translation reserve.
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Americana Restaurants International PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR-ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
jonmtinued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
24 Hyperinflation {continwed )

Gains or losses on the net monetary position are recognised in the consolidated statement of income. All ems
recognised in the income statement are restated by applying the change in the peneral price index from the dates
when the items of mcome and expenses were initially eamed or mcurred.

Al the beginning of the first period of application, the components of equity, are restated by applving & general
price index from the dates the components were contributed or siherwise arose, These restatements are recognised
in other comprehensive mcome as a translation adjustment. 1 on initial application of hyperinflation accounting
the restated value of the non-monetary assets excesd their recoverable amount, the initial adjustment is capped at
the recoverable amount and the net increase is recorded directly in retained earnings. At the end of the first period
and in subsequent periods, all components of equity are restated by applying a general price mdex from the
beginning of the period or the date of contribution,, if later.

All items in the consolidated statement of cash flows are expressed in terms of the general price index at the end
of the reporting period.

The Lebanese economy has been classified as hyperinflationary. Accordingly, the results, cash fows and financial
position of the Group®s entity, International Touristic Projects Lebanese Co, has been expressed in terms of the
measuring unit current at the reporting date. For further details, refer us Note 4,

.5 Froperty and equipment

Property and equipment is stated an cost less accumubated depreciateon and impairment, where applicable. The
cost of property and equipment is its purchase cost together with any incidental expenses of acquisition.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s canrying amount or recognised as 4 separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Growp and the
cost of the item can be measured reliabby. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged 1o the consolidated
statement of income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

The assets” residual values and oseful lives are reviewed, and adjusted il appropriate, al each reporting date. An
assel’s carrying amount is writlen down immediately 1 its recoverable amount iT the asset’s carrying amoant 15
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets 15 calculated usmg the strmghi-line method, ot rates
calculated to reduce the cost of assets to their estimated residual valoe over their expected useful lives, as follows:

Years
Leasehold improvements and furniture 5-7
Buildings il
Cold rooms 5
Equipment and tools 4-7
Vehicles 4

Buildings comprise of construction-related amounts (20 vears); electical fitouts (10 vears) and buoilding
extensions (7 years),

The Group depreciates leaschold improvements and fumiture, over the lower of the useful life of the assets or the
propeny lease term,

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts and ane incheded in
the consolidated siatement of income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR-ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
{comtinued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

15 Property and equipment {continued})

Capital work-in-progress is stated af cost. When commissioned, capital work-in-progress is transferred 1o the
appropriste category of buildings and equipment and deprecizted in accordance with the Group's policy.

L6 Investment properiies

Prosperty that is held for long-term rental vields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
entities in the consolidated financial statements, is classified as investment property. Land hekd under operating
leases is classified and accounted for by the Group as investment property when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The investmen! properizes of the Group comprize of several lands and baildings,

Investment properties are measured an their cost less depreciation, inchuding related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs.

The fair value of the myvestment properiies for disclosure purposes are based on active markes prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset 1T this information is mot
available, the Group uses altermnative valuation methods, such as recent prices on bess active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Valuations are performed as of the reporting date by professional valuwers who hold
recognised and relevant professional qualifications and have recent experience in the location and category of the
investment property being valued.

When an investment property is sold, gains and losses on disposal are determined by reference o its canrying
amouni and are taken into account in determining profit or loss. This is recorded in the consolidated statement of
income as gain or loss on sale of invesiment properties, Refer 1o Note 6 Tor Turther details.

17 Intangible asseis
These comprise of franchise agreements with third parties for licensing and operation of restanrant chains. The
intangible asset is measured at the cost less amortisation. Amorisation is calculated using the straight-line method

1o allocate the costs over its estimated useful life of 3 to 10 vears. Franchises and agencies are amortised over
lower of lease period or franchise agreement.

Amortisation of intangible assets is calculated on the straight-line method, at rates caleulated to redwce the cost
of assets to their estimated residual value over their expected useful lives, as follows:

Franchises and agencies lower of 5-10 vears or lease period
18 Financial assets

fil Classiffeation

The Group classifies its financial assets under the following categories:

* Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPLY, and
= Amortised cost.

These classifications are on the basis of business model of the Group for managing the financial assets, and
coniractunl cash flow characteristics.

The Group measures financial asset at amortised cost when it is within the busingss model to hold assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows, and contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely pavments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will be recorded in the consolidated statement of mcome
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR-ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1022
{continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

18 Financial assets (continued)
fiil Recognition and derecognition

Al ininial recognition, the Group measures financial assets a1 i fair value plus, in the case of a financial assel not
at foir walue throwgh profit or loss, transactions costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assel. Transaction cost of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the
consolidated statement of income.

Financial pssets are derecopnised when the contractenl cash flows from the asset expire or it transfers s rights to
receive contractual cash flows on the financial assen ina transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are transferred.

fiif) Snbsequent measwrement
Lheht fnstruments

Subsequent measurement of financial assets is as follows:

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at amorised cost Interest income from
these Minancial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method, Any gain or
b= arising on derecognition is recognised directly in the consolidated statersent of income and presented
in other gainsy losses) ogether with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separsde line item in the consolidated statement of inceme,

. FWPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amertised cost or FYOCT are measured at FVPL. A gain
or loss on a debt investment thar is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in the consolidsed
statement of income and presented net within other gains/{losses) in the period i which it arises.

i) Impeirment

The Group assesses on a forward-booking basis the expecied credit losses associated with its debt imstruments
carried al amortised cost and FVOCL The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been
o significant increase in credit risk.

Trade and other recefvables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characienistics and the days past due. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, and further adjusted 1o reflect
current and forward-looking information on macrecconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables.

Trade receivables are writlen off when there is no reasonabbe expectaton of recovery. Indicators tha there i= no
reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debior to engage in a repayment plan
with the Group.

Loss allowance on trade receivables is writlen of T when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previoushy written off are credited against the same line item. Management assessed the
expected credit losses as prescribed by the requirements of IFRS 9 against trade and other receivables. The
information is disclosed in Note @ of the consolidated fMinancial siatemenits,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR-ENDED 3i DECEMBER 2022

fooninued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
24 Financial assets {contmeed)
i) FBOR Reform implications

The areas impacted by the amendments of the Inmerest Rate Benchmark Reform inchides application of the
accounting for modifications of financial assets and financial liabilitics when transactions are updated for the new
IBOR rates (will not resubt in derecognition), reliel on changes 1o hedge designations and hedge documentation (a
change to kedge designations and hedge documentation required by [BOR reform would not result in discontinuation
of hedge accounting) and providing disclosures that enable wiers 1o understand nature and exient of msks anging
from interest rate benchmark reform to which Americana Restaurants is exposed and how it manages those risks.
The amendments was applied retrospectively with no restatement required for prior periods.

Muanagement s working on Amerncana Resiaurants’ iransition activities and continues to engage with s
counterpanics (o support an orderly transition and to mitigate the risks resulting from the transition. Americana
Restaurants’ major exposure as of 31 December 2021 was a loan to a related party with a carrying value of USD
3,000 thousand which was linked and noi transitioned from London Inter-bank Offered Rate ("LIBOR” )L As per
the latest guidance, Intercontinental Exchange (“1CE") would continue publishing LIBOR till 30th June 2023, Any
change of benchmark rate would be economically indifferent 1o Americana Festaurants and the counlerparties, no
maiter which aliermative benchmark is adopted. There is no significant exposure for Americana Restauranis as of 31
December 2022 as the loan 10 a relabed party of USD 64,0080 thousand was settled during the vear (Note 22}

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Aszzls that have an indelinite useful hife, for example goodwill, are nod subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation and smortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may nod be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrving amount excesds its recoverable
amount, The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset™s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, For
the purposes of assessing impainment, assets are grouped ot the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows {cash-generating uniiz), Non-financial assets that suffered impainment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting dage.

210 Imventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated net realisable value, Cost is determined by the weighted
average method and incluedes all costs incurred in acquiring the inventeries and bringing them to their present
location and condition, Net realisable value is the estimate of the selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less wariable selling expenses, if any. Inventories in transit are recognised when the risks and rewards ane
transferred to the Group in accordance with the shipping terms agreed with the suppliers,

.11 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of preseniation in the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
of cash on hand, current accounts and term deposits with original matarity of three months or less and net of bank
overdrafts. In the consolidated statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are disclosed separately within
current liabilities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

212 Leases

The Growup's leasing activities and kow these are accounred for

The Group leases various office space, accommodation, vehicles, restaurams space, land, warehouses and call
centres. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed pericds of 1 1o 25 years, Lease terms are nepotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions., The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants, but lepsed assels may nol be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asser and corresponding Lability a1 the date of which the leased asset s
available for use by the Group. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to the consolidated statement of income over the lease period 50 a5 1o produce a constant periodic
rate of inerest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease lisbilities include
the net present value of the following lease paymenis:

fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable;

variable bease payement that are based on an index or a rate;

amounts expected 1o be payvable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchass option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that opticn; and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted based on the incremenial borrowing rate determined by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured af cost comprising the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease lability;
any lease pavments made af or before the commencement date less any lease mcentives received or
receivable, as applicable; and

®  restorafion costs,

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a
straighi=line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise & purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and beases of low-valise assets are recognised on a straight=-line basis
as an expense in the consolidated statement of income. Short-term leases arc leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less. Low-value assets generally comprise of office equipment,

Varighle leaze pavurenis
Estimation uncertalnly arising from variable lease payments

Some leases confain variable payment terms that are linked 1o sales generated from a store, Variable lease
pavments that depend on sales are recognised in the consolidated statement of income in the period in which the
condition that triggers those pavmenis osocurs,

Exrenxion and fermination options

Extension and termination options ane included in a several properties, land and vehicles leases across the Group,
These terms are used to masimise operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. Management lave
concluded not to include any extension or iermination oplions i the IFRS 16 lease perniod on the basis that it is
not reasonably certain to exercise the options given the optiens requires both parties mutually agresing on renewed
terms and conditions,
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] SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contimued)
212 Lemses {continuied)
Keni Comcessions

Om 31 March 2021, the IASE published a further amendment to extend the date of the practical expedient from 30
June 2021 1o 30 June 2022 in light of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. Since Americana Restaurants had already
applied the practical expedient in the May 2000 amendment, it is required to continue to apply the practical expedient
consistently, 1o all lease contracts with similar characteristics and in similar circumstances, using the March 2021
amendment. Americana Restaurants has early adopted this amendment on | January 2021 and as a result, Americana
Restaurants has recognised a gain on the renf concessions amounting 10 as “ether income” in the consolidaied
statement of income for the year ended 31 December 2022 USD 667 thousand (2021: USD 6,978 thousamd) to
reflect changes in lease payments that arise from remt comcessions to which they have applied the practical

expedient.
2.13  Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

The liability for employees end of service benefits recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
in respect of the defined benefit plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at thie end of the reportimg
period. The defined benefit plan is unfunded where no plan assets are s21 aside in advance to provide for future
linhilities; instead, the liabilities are met out of the Group’s own resources as they fall due. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method and in
accordance with the labour laws of the couniries in which the Group operates.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows
using imterest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits
will be paid. and that have 1erms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. In countries where there is
no deep market in such bonds, the market rates on government bonds are used.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the defined benelit obligation, This cost is
included in finance costs i the consolidated statement of income.

Rermeasurement gains and losses arisimg from experience sljustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period i which they oecur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in the
accumulated resulis in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and in the statement of financial position.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curiailments
are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of income as past service costs.

214 Financial liabilities

The Group initially recognises debt securities issued on the date that they originated. All other financial liabilities
{including liabilities designated as fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially on the trade date at
which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Group derecognizes a
financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Mon-derivative financial
liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, sukuk nodes and trade and other payables. Such financial liabilities are
recognised initially &l fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
these financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective mterest method,

2.15  Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations (o pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle if longer), 17 not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables
are recognised initially @ fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

216 Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
wsing a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time valee of money and risks specific 1o the
obligation. Increases in provisions due to the passage of time are recognised in the consolidated statement of
income,

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an ouflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect 1o any one ftem included mn the same class of obligations may be small.

17 Derivative Mnancial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date & derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remensured to their fnir value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the fair value of
derivative imstrumenis are included in the consolidated statement of income for the vear. The Group does not

apply hedge accounting.
218 Revense from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue, based on the five-step model as set out in IFRS 15:

Step 1 - [dentify the contract with a customer; A conract is defined as an agreement between w0 oF miore partics
that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for each of those rights and obligations.

Step 2 - Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation i a contract = a promise
to transfer a good or service o the customer.

Step 3 - Determine the transaction price; Transaction price is the amount of consideration o which the Group
expecis o be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised peods and services 1o a customer, excluding
amounis collected on behall of third parties,

Step 4 - Allocate the wansaction price 1o the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more
than one performance obligation, the Group will allecats the transaction price 1 sach performance obligation in
an amount that depicts the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfving each
performance obligation.

Step § - Recognise revenue as and when the Group satisfies a performance obligation,

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivablbe, taking into acoount the contractually
agreed terms of payment excluding taxes and duties, The Group assesses ils revenue arrangeoments against specific
criteria to determine if it is acting as principal or an agent and has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all
ils revenue irmmgements,

Revenue is recognised in the consolidated financial statements to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if and when applicable, can be measured reliably.
Revenue represents the amounts received from food and beverage sales and rental income.

Revenue is recognized from the Group's activities as fiollows:

fad Food and ﬁ'ﬂwag.:-

Revenue from food and beverage sales is recognised in the accounting period in which the goods are sold. The
revenue is stated net of discounts,
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

218 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
k) frvestment propenty remlal Income

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives
granted are recognised as an integral pan of the total rental income, over the term of the lease, It is presented as
part of revenue in the consolidated statement of income.

219 Finamnece income and costs

Finance income comprises interest income on short term investments and other bank deposits. Interest income is
recognised as it is accrued in the consolidated statement of income, using the effective interest method.

Finance costs are mainly interest pavable on borrowings obtained from financial institutions at normal commercial
rtes and is recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement of income in the period in which it is incurred,

el | Corrent and deferred income tax and zakat

The tax expense for the year comprises of current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement
of income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In such a case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The Group's operations in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia are subject 1o zakay i accordance with the regulations
of the Fakat, Tax & Customs Authority ("ZTCA"), any amount accrued under these regulations is charged to the
consolidated statement of income.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
date of the consolidated statement of financial position in the countries where the Group's subsidiaries operae
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect o
sitluations in which applicable tax regulations are subject o interpretation and establishes provisions where
approgriate on the basis of amounts expecied 1o be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability methad, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrving amounts in the consolidated financial statements, However, the
deferred income tax is ned accounted for i i1 arses from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting, nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rtes (and laws) that have been enacted or substanfively
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is sentled,

Dieferred income tax assets are recognised (o the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Dieferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will nod reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Curremnt tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a begally enforceable right to offset and intends cither to settle on a net
basis, o to realise the asset and settle the lability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of income, except 10 the extent that it relates

to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In such a case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

i | Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
thousand currency unils unbess otherwise stated,

2.12  Rovaliies

The Group has entered into agreements with various intemational franchisors for the use of the trademarks and
business models, The rovalty fee payable for the use of trademarks and business models is computed as a
percentage of gross sales and is expensid in the vear in which it accrues against the revenue recognised.

223 Segment reporting

Oiperating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the resource allocation and risk management by the
chief operating decision makers. The chief operating decision makers assess the financial performance and
position of the Group and makes strategic decisions. The chief operating decision makers consist of the chief
executive officer, the chief financial officer and the chiel operasting officer,

224 Basis of consolidation

fil Subaiciories

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights io, variable retums from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability 1o affect those retumns through its power over the entity, Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control i iransferred 1o the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that contral ceases,
The Group applics the acquisition methad of accounting 0 account for business combinations. except for
acquisitions involving entities under common control, which are accounted for using the predecessor method. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group.

The consideration transferred inclwdes the fair value of anv assel or liability reseling from a contingent
consideration amangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurrcd. Identifiable assets acquired and
linbilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initally at their fair values
a1 the acquisition date. On an acquisition=by=acquisition basis, the Growp recognises any non-controlling mterests
in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests” proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
assels,

IF the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date camrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in the consolidated statement of income. Contingent consideration is
classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are subsequemily
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

The excess of the consideration transfermed, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the 1oal of consideration wransferred. non-controlling interests
recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated statement of
income.

Won-contrelling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown scparately in the consolidated
statement of income, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of financial position respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

.24 Basis of consolidation (contimeed)
fial Subsidiaries foontimed)

The consolidated financial statements comprises the consolidated financial statements of Americana Restaurants
International PLC and its subsidiaries that were transferred 10 it by Kuwait Food Company (Americana) K.5.C.C.

The subsidiaries of Americana Restaurants International PLC were transferred to it under a capital reorganisation
during the year ended 31 December 2022, The transfer is treated as a capital reorganisation under common control
and the predecessor method of accounting and retrospective presentation is wsed.

ik Transaecttons eliminated on convolidation

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on wransactions between Group companies ane
eliminated, Unrealised kosses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary fo ensure consistency
with the policies adopred by the Group.

fci Chavges in imeresty in substdiaries without change af control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners, The difference berween fair
value of any consideration paid and the relevant shares acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals 10 non-controlling interests are also recorded in

equiLy.
il ﬂ.i,:'prum' rg'r subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured o its fair value at the
date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in the consolidated statement of income.
The fair value is the initial camrying amount for the purpases of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any smounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as i the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or linbilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to the consolidated statement of income,

2,25  Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted eamings per share (“EPS”) data for fis ordinary shares. Basic eamings per
share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the number
of ordinary shares outstanding afier share split during the year ended 31 December 2022. Diluted eamings per
share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders and the number of shares
on formation for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, The denominator has been adjusted
retrospectively in caloulmting historical EPS for the vear ended 31 December 2021 by using the number of ordinary
shares outstanding afier share split as on 31 December 2022, Given the number of ordinary shares changed as a
result of a share split. the calculation of basic and diluted eamings per share for all periods presented are adjusted
refrospectively,
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
LN Financial risk faciors

The Group's activities may expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
price and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk). credit risk and liquidity risk, The management carries out
risk assessment for managing each of these risks, The overall risk management program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance
of the Group,

Risk management is predominately controlled by a central treasury department of the Group under policies
approved by the Board of Directors, The central treasury department identifies, evaluates and hedges financial
risks in close co-operation with the Group's operating units. The Board of Directors provides written principles
for overall risk management. as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, imerest
rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and
investment of excess Haguidity,

fal Mfarder risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity
prices will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market
risk management is o manage and control market risk exposures within aceeplable parameters, while optimising
the return, the Group’s exposure o marke! risk arises from:

i Foreign exchange rizk

The Group operstes in various countries and undertakes transactions denominated in various currencies, other
than the fimctional currency of each of the Group's entities. Foreign exchange risk arises from its future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

The Group is mainly exposed 1o foreign currency risk as a result of gain or losses from translated assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, such as cash and cash equivalents balances, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables and hank facilities.

The Group is exposed 1o foreign exchange risk arising from currency exposures, primarily with respect 1o the
Kuwaiti Dinar (“KWD™), Saudi Rival (“SAR"), UAE Dirham (“AED™). and Egvptian Pound (“EGP). Foreign
exchange risk berween KWD, SAR, and AED is limited, Furthermare, with respect to the Lebanese Lira (“LL7),
The Group is exposed 1o the hyperinflationary environment on its operations in Lebanon (please refer 1o Note 4
for the critical accounting estimates used by management). However, the exposure of the exchange rate fluctuation
is deemed insignificant to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 20022,

Below is the sensitivity analysis for foreign exchange risk exposed under EGP.

At 31 December 2022, if the EGP had weakened'strengthened by 5% (202 1: 5%) against the LISD with all other
variables held constant, the consolidated comprehensive income for the year would have been lower'higher by
USD 596 thousand (2021: USD 720 thousand), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation
of EGP-denominated trade payvables.

At 31 December 2022, if the EGP had weakened/strengthened by 5% (2021: 3%) against the USD with all other
variables held constant, the consolidated comprehensive income for the year would have been higherlower by
USD 160 thousand (2021: LISD 266 thousand). mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on transiation
of EGP-denominated trade receivables,

There are no significant risks from the other currencies as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
£ | Financial risk factors (continued)

fii) Price risk

The Group is not exposed to significant price risk as it does not have investments in traded equity securities or
similar assets and liabilities.

Fiik Cash flow and fair value interest rale risk
The financial assets and liabilities exposed to interest rate Muctuations are cash deposits and bank facilitics,

The Group's central treasury ensures that deposits are maintained at the best prevailing market rate at the time of
initinting each deposit.

Classiffcation af derfvarives

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging purposes and not as speculative investrents. However, where
derivatives do not meet the hedge accounting criteria, they are classified as “held for trading” for accounting
purposes and are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss, They are presented as current assets or liabilities
to the extent they are expected 1o be settled within 12 months after the end of the reporting period,

bl Credit rivk

Credit risk is the risk that the Growp will incur a loss because of its customer or counterparty failed to discharge
their contractual obligation.

The Mnancial instruments exposed o credit risk are a8 follows:

US Dhollars" 0060

31 December 31 December
2022 2021

Cash and bank balances excluding cash on hand 300,198 69,687
Loan 1o a related party - B, 000
Trade and sher receivahles® 67,301 B0, (6
Due from related parties bk iy 1189
367 K26 0u 023

*Trade and other receivables noted above exclude advances to suppliers and prepaid expenses. Advances lo
suppliers and prepaid expenses are primarily related to landlords where the Group occupies the premises as per
the lease agreements, There is no official credit rating for trade and other receivables.

fil Cash aviad cath equivaloms

The Group manages credit risk exposure arising from cash a1 banks by dealing with well-established banks of
repute in the countries in which it operates. This is assessed based on Moodys credit rating of the bank with
which balances are maintained by the Group which primarily range from Aa3 to B3 at the reporting date of which
majority of the cash and cash equivalents are with investment grade banks.

il Trade and ;ther recefvables

The credit quality of the customers is assessed according 1o their financial positions, past experience and other
relevant factors. The utilisation of eredit limits and outstanding receivables are regularly monitored. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the camying value of each class of trade and other
receivables mentioned above,

(i) Levan o0 @ relafed party and dive from related parfies

Credit risk on loan 1o a related party and due from related parties is considered minimal a8 management monitors
and reconciles relased party balances on a regular basis and assesses the related parties to ensure they have
sufficient resowrces to settle the obligations and, hence, recoverability is ned considered to be doubtful.
Management does not expect any losses from non-performance by such related parties. At 31 December 2022,
pnd 31 December 2021 the expected credit loss allowance on loan to a related party and due from related parties
wizs immaterial,
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

31 Fimancial risk factors (continued)

fch Ligueidiey risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implics maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability 1o close out market positions.
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group aims to maintain flexibility i funding by

keeping committed credit lines available.

The table below analvses the Group®s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
year at the consolidated statement of financial position o the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in

the table are the contrsctual undiseounied cash flows:

LS Daliars" (A

As on 31 December 2022

Within I year to 5 More than
1 year years 5 years Total
Bank facilities 18,502 - " 18,592
Leaze liabilities 163,260 163,285 61,186 447,731
Trade and other payables (excluding value
added tax pavable and uncamed ncome) 369,647 = - 69,647
551490 163,185 1. 186 B75,970
fc) Ligueidity risk (continued)
LIS Dollars (0
As on 31 December 2021
Within I year to 5 Muore than
1 year WiEars S years Total
Bank facilitics 7,073 - . 7073
Lease liabilities 38369 231,70 L L 442,127
Trade and other payables (excluding value
added tax payvable and uneamed income) 325212 = - 335,212
471,154 233,796 G 462 TT4.412

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concem
in order to provide retumns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure 1o reduce the cost of capital. The capital structure comprises of the equity pius debt.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid 1o
shareholders, retumn capital 1o shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debi.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
33 Fair value estimation

The below analvses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

® Quuoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilities (level 1)
Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observabbe for the asset or lishility, cither
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 20,

® Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
{lewvel 3).

The fair value of financial instruments raded in active markels 15 based on quoted market prices at the reporting
date, A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or régulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an amm's length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is based on valuation technigues,
These valuation techniques maximise the wse of ohservable markel data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. 1 all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are ohservable,
these instruments are included in level 2. 17 one or more of the significant inputs i not based on observable market
data, these instrumients are included in level 3.

As at 31 December 2022, the derivative fmancial instrument under the agreement with REEF Technology Inc and
REEF 5PV ME Holdings LLC is held ar fair value under level 3. The fair value as at 31 December 2022 is
estimated to be USD 11,131 thousand (2021: USD 9.3 thousand) (refer 10 Node %), There are mo other assets
and liabilities measured at fair value as ot 31 December 2002 and 20210,

The carrving value less impairment provision of current trade receivables and payables are assumed to
approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the fulure contractual cash fows at the current marked interest rate that is available 1o the Group for
similar financial inswruments. Ciher receivables and payables approximate their fair values.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of these consolidated Nnancial statements regquires management 1o make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reporied amounts of revenues, expenszs, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities at the reporting date, However, uncertainty aboul these assumplions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment 1o the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected
in future periods.

Estimates and judsements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumsiances.

Critical judgements
Comtrod of a swbsidiary

The management has concluded that the Group controls Bahrain and Kuwait Restaurants Company, even though
it hobds less than half of the voting rights of this subsidiary. Americana Restaurants, the largest shareholder with
a 40% equity inderest, has the exclusive right to manage Bahrain and Kuwall Restaurants Company, According
1o the contraciual arrangements in place, the Group appoints all key management and makes all the key operating
decisions which further suggests it has power over the mvestee and thus consolidates based on these facts.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Hyperinfation

The Group exercises significant judgemnent in determining the onset of hyperinflation in countries in which it
operates and whether the functional currency of its subsidiary is the currency of a hvperinflationary economy.
Warious characteristics of the economic environment of each country are taken into account. These characteristics
inclhude, but are not lmited 1o, whether:

* the general population prefers to keep its wealth in non-monetary assets or in a relatively stable foreign

CUTEACY;

* prices are quoted in a relatively stable foreign currency;

* sales or purchase prices lake expected losses of purchasing power during a short credit period into account;

* interest rafes, wages and prices are linked 1o a price index; and

* the cumulative inflation rate over three vears is approaching, or exceads, 1008,

Management exercises judgement as to when a restatement of the financial statements of a subsidiary becomes
necessary. Following management’s assessment, the subsidiary of the Group, Intemational Touristic Projects
Lebanese Co has been accouned for as entity operating in hyperinflationary economies. The results, cash flows
and financial positions of International Towristic Projects Lebanese Co have been expressed in terms of the
measuring units current at the reporting date.

The economy of Lebanon was assessed io be hyperinflationary effective Sepiember 2020, and hyvperinflation
accounting has been applied since.

The general price index used as published by the International Monetary Fund is as follows:

Date General price laNatisn rate

Base vear e (%}
31 Drecember 202 ) 2019 | Ti%
31 December 2022 2009 917 1,687%

Whilst the impact of hyperinflation accounting is insignificant to the Group's consolidated financial statements,
the Group's management has assessed the impact and adjusted for the effects of hyperinflation as set out below:

31 December 31| December

2022 2021

Income siatcment LISTH i) LIS 000

Increase in revenue 4,233 4 B89

Monetary (losshgain from hyper inflaticn (1,521} 3043

Reversal of impairment of non-financial asscts - 1.025
Increase in cost of revenues {1.938) (4,718)
Increass in selling and marketing cxpenses (2.044) (1,581)
Increase in general and administrative expenses (117 {1, 10603
(nhers 1,041 i(1,881]
Decrease in prafit affer tax (356 (323]

Critical accounting estimates and assum pthons

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future, The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, sebdom equal the related actual results.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabiliies within the next financial vear are as follows:
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assum ptions {(continued)
Intpairment of mov-financial assis

The Group has determined that the smallest cash generating units (“CGU™) is its Brand-Country level primarily
on the basis that the Group is required to maintan & minmum aumber of stores in each coumry in order 1o
maintain the exclusivity right in line with the franchise agreemenis. Management also leverages its shared services
infrastructure in each country, and it has developed financial and operating performance mdicators on a brand-
country bevel. Management performs a quarterly study to identify indications of impairment according to LAS 36,
Impairment of Assets (“IAS 36™), in which discounted future cash flows are caleulaied 10 ascenain whether the
value of asseis has become impaired. However, a risk exists whereby the assumptions used by management to
calculate futwre cash flows may mot be fair based on current conditions and those prevailing in the foresseable
future, The non-financial assets which relate fo restawrant cutlets, that were assessed for impairment are properiy
and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets amounting o USD 736,999 thousand as at 31 December
2022 {2021: USD 626,517 thousand ). The reversal of impairment recognised in the consalidated income statement
on these non-fnancial assets are as follows:

31 December 31 December
02 2021
IS0 0 LIS oon
Property and equipment (Mote 5) (59 {1.356)
Right-ol-use assets (Mote 12) 4 292
Intangible assets (Mote T) (1} (115}
Total (46} (1.179)

The following table presents the Growp's key assumptions angd the effect of the sensitivity analysiz on the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on those assumpdions:

Headroom/(Impairment of non-financial assets)

LS Diallars"000
Change in
assumplion  Year ended 31 December 2022 Year ended 31 December 2021
Growth rate +-0.5% - - e (43)
Dhscount rate =L 5% - - (17} I8
EBITDA margin +-1 0% - - 135 (T )
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Critical accounting estimates nnd assam plions {contmued)
Impairment of non-financial arsets (continued)
Key assumptions used in value in use calculations for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

CGLUs impairment testing: Key assumptions 2022

GCC Lower Gulf Maorth Africa (hers
Girowth rate 4% - 6% 4% - 6% 5% - 18% 4% = 46%
Discount raie 11% 1% - 15% 13% = 17% 13% - 29%;
Imcrease’decrease in ERITDA
. 2% - 4% I - 30 2% - 12% 2% - 35%.
margin
CGUs impairment testing: Key assumptions 202 1
GCC Lower Gulf Morth Africa {Mhers
Girowth e 3% - 15% 3% - 13% s - 1d%% (49%%) - 2%
¥iscount rate T% - 8% T - 0% s - 1 1% Ofa = 2%
Increase/decrease in EBITDA
s " % 3% 2% - 3% 19 - T% 2 - 100%
margin
Tares

The Group is subject 1o corporate income tax and Zakat. Significamt judgment is required in determining the
prowision for taxes, There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises a liability for anticipated taxes based on
cstimates of whether additional taxes will be due 1o be paid, Where the final tax cutcome of these matiers is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the vear in which such determination is made (Mote 317,

Twipatrment of finametal assets

The impairment of trade receivables and other receivables is based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period,

{_1an#¢:¢' crlffiacetians

In the preparation of these consolidmed financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 in accordance
with I[FRS, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions relating o the allocation of certain
expenses and income historically maintained by Kuwait Food Company {Americana) K.5.C.C. Such flems have
been allocated to the Group and included in the consolidated financial statements based on the most relevant
allocation method that are considered to be reasonable for the purpose of these consolidated financial statements,
Actual results may differ from these estimates. A 107 incréase or decrease change in allocation percentages would
result in approximately USD 2.0 million change in expense allocated to the Growp for the vear ended 31 December
2021,
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS | continued)

Critical aecounting estimates and assumptions (continued)

Corporale allocations foontimied)
The expenses as mentioned above are allocated on the following basis:

Nature of costs Basis of allocation

[Employees related benefits andAllocation is based on the cstimated time spent and activities among the

COsLs staurant Business, Food Business, and corporate function,

Rent and wtilites These costs have been allocated based on headeount of the employvees from each
business utilising the office space.

rofessional, legal, and office
rinistrative fees [These costs are identifisble and have been allocated based on the activity

Forelgn currency translation - Intesnational Touristic Projects Lebanese Co.

International Touristic Projects Lebanese Co. ("Americana Lebanon™) is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Cirop,
During the previous vear, the banks in Lebanon implemented unofficial foreign exchange controls in the banking
sector o manage the shortapes. The US Dollar ("USD") has been i wide ise and circulation over the last 2 decades
or more and against which the Lebanese Pound has been pepred throughout that period at Lebanese Lira ("LL")
1,507.5 per USD ("official exchange rate™).

In terms of IFRS, where a country has multiple exchange rates, judgement is required to determine which exchange
rate qualifies as a spod rate that can be used for the translation of foreign operations, Factors to determine this
include whether the currency is available a1 an official exchange rate. After the launching of an official elecironic
platform (*Sayrafa’) by the Central Bank of Lebanon where the exchange rate is published on a regular basis for
the participating banks and for settlement of foreign payables, management has considered Sayrafa as an alternative
official exchange rate, being a more relevant spot rate. As a result, management has used the aliermate official
exchange rate being the Sayrafa rate to translate Americana Lebanon’s operations to the USD presentation currency
s a1 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021,

Lrerfvattive Tnanetal insfruarents

The fair value of derivative financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined using
valuation techniques. the Group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.

Extension oF ferndmaiion r.!_nn'un.;

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably cerain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to
terminade the lease, if it is reasonably certain not (o be exercised. Management have concluded not to include any
extension or termination options in the IFRS 16 lease period on the basis that it i nol reasonably cerlain to exercise
the options given the options requires both parties mutually agreeing on renewed terms and conditions.
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{continused)

[ INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

L% Dillars"000

2022 2021
Balance as at | January o341 7,521
Transfers from property and equipment . 2,434
Foreign currency translation difference (2,926) 12
Depreciation (545) i6ed)
Balance as at 31 December 5870 0,541

The fair value lor disclosure purposes is determined by professionally qualified external valuers once every year,

A formal exiernal valuation of the investment property was undenaken by independent qualified appraisers, on
an open market basis at 31 December 2022 and 2021, Based on such valuation, the fair valuee of the Group's
investment at that date was determined ar LISD 19,972 thowsand (2021; USD 31,958 thousand),

The lease income remgnis.ed during the vear ended 3§ December 2022 is USD 3,61 1 thousand {2021 USD 2,764
thousand). Refer to Note 23. Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases of mvestment
properiies not recognised in the consolidated financial statements are receivable as follows:

US Dollsrs" 000

31 December 31 December

2022 2|

Within one vear 2,960 2 868

Between | and 2 years 2,234 2.581

Between I and 3 vears 1.862 2,151

Between 3 and 4 years 1,117 1.2%1

Betwesn 4 and 5 years 1,134 2,581
Later than 5 vears ,440 4,302

15,847 15,774

Revaluation of imvestment property (for disclonre purposes)

The fair valuation for the leased properties for disclosure purpose was done using the “Income approach’ which
involves determination of the value of the investment propery by calculating the net present value of expected
future eamings. The valuation method adopted for these properiies s based on inputs that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable mputs - Level 3), The valuation method adopied for thess propertees
fall umder level 3.

For vacant investment property, the ‘Market approach’ was used 1o determine the fair value, This involves
determination of the value of the asset with reference to comparable market transactions for assets in chose
proximity, These values are adjusted for differences in kev attributes such as size, gross foor area and location
(thai is, significant observable input — Level 3).

The significant unobservable mputs used and related sensitivity analvsis are as follows:

Year ended 31 Assumpiion  Average value of Sensitivity analysis
December the assumption
.1 i Sales rate USD | 491 per An increase {decrease) of 1% would increase (decrease) the
m’ investment properties” fair value by USD 200 thousand.
e e | Sales rate USD 2,577 per An increase (decrease) of 1% would increase (decrease) the
m’ investment properties” fair value by USD 320 thousand.
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7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

At 1 January 2022

Additions

Transfers

Hyperinflation adjustment

Disposals

Foreign cumrency translation difference
At 31 December 2022

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Al 1 January 2022

Amortisation

Transfers

Disposals

Hyperinflation adjustment

Reversal of impairment

Foreign currency translation difference

Al 31 Decem ber 2022

Met book amount
At 31 December 2022

Caost

Al 1 Janpary 2021

Additions

Transfiers

Hyperinfiation adjustment

Diisposals

Forcign cumency translation difference
At 31 Deeember 2021

Accumulated amaortisation and impairment
Al 1 Janunry 2021

Amaoriisation

Disposals

Hyperinflation adjustment

Reversal of impairment

Foreign currency translation difference

At 31 December 2021

Met hook amount
Al 31 Decem ber 2021

IS Dollars" D00
Franchise and
agencies Oithers Total
81,520 QAsS 90,975
E192 ) 8.1,
1,004 11104
5E7 - E57
(10,621) - (10,621)
(3,683) = {3.683)
87,069 3455 86,524
47,358 T 48,352
105 . TS
(45) - (45)
(7,528) - (7.528)
434 - 454
(11) - (1)
(1,394} = (L3
45,936 T 46,933
41,133 8 AZE 49,591
US Deollars 000
Franchise and
aAgCncics Chhers Total
15318 9455 B4, 773
E.303 - 8,303
3397 - 3,397
i - 62
(2,567) ¥ (2.567)
{3,533) = (3.533)
B1.520 9,455 ), 975
46,084 a7 47,081
6,033 - 6,133
(2.057) - (2,057}
454 - 494
(115} - (115)
(3,184) - (3, 184)
47,355 a97 48352
34,165 B458 42623

*Franchise and agencies’ comprizse of franchise fee paid to third parties for licensing and operation of restaurant

chains in line with the related franchise agreemenis.
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5 INVENTORIES

1S Dolkars (i
I December 31 December
2022 2021
Raw materials 132,131 60 528
Filling and packing materials 15,006 11,546
(Mher materials 13973 12,879
Gioods in ramsil 11,805 13,425
Spare parts 7,037 LA L]
179,952 113,778
Provision for obaolete, slow moving and defective inventories {6.1.26) {6,481
173,826 107,297

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the vear was USD 760,322 thousand (2021: USD 623, 720
thousand) (Note 24),

The movements in the provision for obsolete, slow moving and defective inventories are given below:

LIS Dallars"000
2021 2021
Balance at 1 January 481 TSR
Met provision for slow moving items 1,860 I.387
Write-offs against provision for slow moving ilems (1.643) (1,271}
Reclassification {105] -
Foreign currency translation difference {46T) (393}
Balance at 31 December 6,126 G481
9 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
US Dwallars'000
31 December 31 December
2012 20210
Trade receivahle 20,325 26,800
Less: loss allowance (1,315} [(1.B56)
28,000 24,544
Prepaid expenses 31210 28489
Advances to suppliers 1L 1! 5499
Refundable deposits 19,524 18,627
Acerued imcome 5,703 5.304
[nsurance receivables 612 752
Staff receivables 2387 2.313
(rihers 11,105 5106
103,610 94,034

The Group has a broad base of customers with no concentration of credit risk within trade receivables a1 31
December 2022 and 31 December 202,
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9 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrving value of each class of receivable:

U5 Dollars' D00
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Up 1o 3 months 28,154 25,044
3 1o & months 243 561
Orver 6 moenths 938 1.195
20325 26,800

The loss allowance on trade receivables is primarily concentrated in the balances over & months which had an
expecied credit boss allowance of 100% amounting to USD 928 thousand (2021 1 amounting to LISD [, 1935
thousand).

Balances between 3 10 6 months had an expected credit [oss allowance of 36% amounting to USD 136 thousand
(2021: 27% amounting 10 USD 153 thousand). Balances up 1o 3 months had a expected credit loss allowance of
1% amounting to S0 251 thousand (2021 : 2% amounting to USD 508 thousand)

Movement in the loss allowance on trade receivables during the yvear:

L% Dallars 000

2022 2021
Balance at 1 January 1856 1,744
Charge during the year 248 1,454
Write-offs against the loss allowance on trade receivables (582) (1,319}
Reclassification : (26)
Foreign currency transtation differences (207) 3
Balance at 31 December 1315 1,856

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impiired assels and ane nol exposed 1o
significant credit risk.

The carrving amounis of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated in the following cumencias:

US Dollars 000
31 December 31 Decembier
el e H02]
UAE Dirham 9153 5.563
Saudi Rival 4,633 4,455
Egyptian Pound 207 5316
Fousaiti Dinar 3.512 4,151
LIS Dallar 1 &4
Other 8,720 4,261
2932158 26 800
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9 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES {continued)

The carrving value less loss allowance on trade and other receivables is assumed 1o approximate their fair values
due to the short-term nature of trade receivables.

Agreearent with REEF Techinology Inc and REEF 5PV ME Holdings LLC

The Group entered inio an agreement on 9 December 2021 with a third party to operate cloud kitchens in the
region through an investment in REEF Technology Middle East Limited (the “Entity™), The Group acquired 25%
shares in the Entity in exchange for loan notes of USD 28,500 thousand which are non-interest bearing and have
# non-recourse against the Group, As per the agreement, the loan notes are to be setled against the future cash
flows (i.e., dividends) received from the investment of the Group, The Group neither bear any significant risk or
rewards until the loan notes have been fully setiled nor additional liability in case the Entity fails 1o gensrate
sulficient cash flows 1o cover the loan notes, Moreaver, the Group contributed a working capital loan of USD
1,000 thousand towards the Entity which is non-interest bearing and has no fixed repayment terms. The working
capital loan is recorded as a part of other receivables,

Under the same Agreement, the put option and call option is provided to both parties that is exercisable after 9
December 2024, Management has estimated the fair valuation of the stake along with the underlying derivative
instrument to be USD 9390 thousand and accordingly recorded the derivative financial mstrument with the
corresponding deferned gain as at 31 December 2021,

The Group has revalued the derivative financial instrument and estimated the fair value 1o be USD 11,331
thousand as at 31 December 2022 (2021: USD9, 39 thousand), The valuation methodology utilised s consistent
with the prior vear valuation, being the binomial Eattice model with Key assumptions as at 21 December 2022
being an expected life of 4 vears (2021: 5 years), an asset volatility of 21% (2021 22%), and a risk ree interes
rate of 4.1 1% (2021: 1.1%). The difference on revalusation is recorded in the consolidated statement of income,

10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

LS Diollars 000
3 December 31 December
2022 2021
Cash on hand 4,362 4,309
Cash at banks 77414 9420
Short-term deposits with original maturity of 3 monihs or bess 111,784 BO.26T
Cash and cash eguivalents Ji4, 560 173,986

Bank balances are held with local and imternational branches of reputable banks, Management views these banks
a3 having a sound performance history and satisfactory credin ratings. Deposits are presenied as cash equivalents
only if they have a matarity of three months or less from the date of acquisition or are readily convertible 10
known amounts of cash which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash Nows:

LIS Dolkars" (00
31 December 31 December
2021 2021
Cash and cash equivalents 304,560 I 73,996
Less: Bank overdraft (MNote 1 1] (18.591) (7.073)
Balances per consolidated statement of cash flows 285,968 156,923
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{continued)

11 BANK FACILITIES

LIS Dollars 00
31 December 3| December
2022 2021
Short term
Bank overdrafi 18,502 7.073
LIS Dollars’ (40
Maturity of bank Facilities are as follows: 31 December 31 December
022 21
Within one year 18,592 7.073
12 LEASES
fil Amonnty recognized in the consolidaed staremient of financial position
LIS Dullars" 000
Building and
Leasehold Viehicles Land __ Key money Tonal
Right of use nssets
Cost
As at | January 2022 706,776 274697 5,466 B 955 T52.904
Additions 233 501 4886 I 3,78 13246
Hyperinflation adjustment [, 747 - - 445 2,192
Drispaosal (32.316) (254 (142} (B2) (12834)
Transfers - - - T21 721
Foreign currency translation
difference {28335} i TG} (46) {1,118) {20, 565)
As at 31 December 2022 ET1.683 32,213 8,279 13,719 925,804
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
As at | Janpary 2022 364,638 20,100 323 2768 300,929
Charge for the year 142,837 6,572 1,186 2,171 152,766
Hyperinflation adjustment 1121 . - 445 |, 566
Impairment charges 24 - - . 24
Disposal (24,137) (257} (1) (82} [24.47T)
Transfers - - - 45 45
Foreign currency iranslation
difference (11,616) {45) {29} (833) (12.523)
As at 31 December 2022 472867 16,370 457D 4514 508,330
Net book amount
Balance as at 31 December
2022 g6 5843 3,700 0,205 417,564

The additions of right-of-use assets (excluding key money) is a non-cash activity.
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12 LEASES (continued)

fiul Amaurmis recognized in the consolidered starewrent of financial position (continued )

LIS Dollars 000
Building and
Leasehold Wehicles Land E.cy money Total
Right of use assets
Cost
Asat | January 2021 596,590 21,100 5,249 10,871 636,930
Additions 125,884 G, 580 414 [, 40] [ 34,288
Hyperinflation sdjustment 1,987 . . 467 2454
Disposal (5,731} {130 (R3) i 1.5E0) {7.9356)
Transfers . - . I.843 I, 843
Forcign cumency translation
difference (11,954) 38 (102) (2.637) (14,655)
As at 31 December 2021 706,776 27,697 8,466 9,965 752,904
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
Asat | Janoary 2021 245,749 12,202 2317 5115 265,383
Charge for the year 132,361 1.933 1,167 1,782 143,243
Hy perinflation sdjustment 442 = = 467 B
Impairment charges 202 - - - 292
Disposal (3,961) (44} B [ 1.5980) [5.5985)
Foreign currency  iransiotion
difference (10.245) 9 6l (2.616) (12.913)
As at 31 December 2021 64638 20, () 3.423 2,768 30,5929
MNet book amount
Balanee as at 31 December
2021 342,138 7,597 5,043 7,197 361,973
The sdditions of righi-of-use asscis (excluding key money) is o non-cash activity,
31 December 31 December
2022 21
LS oo0 LIS 000
Lease linbilitics
Mon=current 274,603 248,136
Current L, 156 | 36463
434,759 384,599
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12 LEASES icontinued)
{ii) Amonnts recognised in the consolidated siatement of income

W22 2021
LIS (b LIS 00
Finance cosis on lease liabilities (Moie 28) 21,517 g
2022 021
LS 000 LIS (e
Oher rent expenses
Expense relating to short-term and low-value leases 34,781 45441
Expense relsting to variabbe lease payments nol incleded in lease
lkabilities 14,586 11.437
49,367 56918
The Group recognised a gain on COVID-19 related rent concessions of LISD 667 thousand for the vear ended 31
December 2022 (2021 USD 6,978 thousand) under other income in the consolidated statement of income,

13 PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES® END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

1022 021

Muode LS 000 LISD'000
At 1 January T, 260 80,413
Curreni service cosl gl B.534 18,074
Interest expense 28 1173 950
Total amouwnt recognised in the consolidated statement of 2,711 11,024
income
Bemeasureaent of emplovees * ond of service berneffes
- changes in financial assumptions (7811} (2, B46)
= changes in experience / demographic assumptions (T68) 2410
Total amount recognised in the consolidated statement of 5 41
other comprehensive income {B579) (436)
Paymenis (10,686) (13.535)
Transfer 10 stafl accruals E (2}
Foreign currency translation differences 320} (1.204)
AL 3| December s, IR6 Th, 260

In accordance with the provisions of IAS 1%, management has carried out an exercise o assess the present value
of its defined benefit obligation as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, using the projected unit credit
method, in respect of emplovess' end of service benefits payable under labour laws prevailing in the couniries in
which the subsidiaries operate. Under this method, an assessment 15 made of the employee’s expecied service life
with the Growp and the expecied basic salary a1 the date of leaving the service. A provision is made, using actuarial
techniques, for the full amount of end of service benefits due to the employvees in accordance with the local labour
law of the country where they are employed, for their year ended of service up to the reporting date. Management’s
assumptions and sensitiviry analysis are provided below.

Below is the maturity analysis of the expected benefit paymenis:

U5 Dollars 000
3 December 31 Drecember
222 2021
Within one year 17.124 15297
Between 2 and 5 years 47,905 46,712
Later than 5 vears . 69,226
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13 PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEES® END OF SERVICE BENEFITS (continued)

Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity

2022 0210
Average discount rate used 5.15% 1.95%
Average salary growth rate 1.69% 1694
Salary growth effective date during the year April - July April - July
Withdrawal rates per annum 20-15% 20%%
Employee retirement age i Lk
Average duration 3-4 years 4-35 years

Sensitivity of the key actuarial assumptions
LIS Dollars *000
Increasefdecrease) of emplovees' end of service benefits as on

Change in

EASUmpLIOn 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
DHscount rate =1 08% {2,152} 2023 (4,717 1,312
Salary growth
ratg +i=1.0% 2,222 (2,376) 1448 {4,899

14 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

LI5S Dollars ()
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Trade payables 159,640 | 26,543
Non-trade payables i) 830 4,230
Accrued expenses 104,237 5 9dd
Unearmed income T5.807 71,303
Accrued stalf benefits 49305 46,903
Value added tax payable 7,511 6,004
Dxeposits 1636 2070
(aher payables 12,900 12,5493
453455 402,521

Analvsed as fiollows:

LS Diollars 040
31 December il December
02 2021
Current porion 401,173 352,326
Mon=current portion® 51,282 50,195
453,455 402,521

¥ Mon-current portion pertaing to the portion of uncamed income with a performance obligation expected to be
satisfied and recognised within a peried exceeding 12 months,

15 PROVISIONS FOR LEGAL, TAX AND OTHER CLAIMS

. US Dallars (0

31 December 31 December

222 2021

Legal cases 5004 G430
Provision for iermination and closure el & 5,060
Tax 16,819 13,781
Oither provisions 4,162 3,791

29,189 32,062 _
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15 PROVISIONS FOR LEGAL, TAX AND OTHER CLAIMS (continued)

_ 2022 (USDE00n)
Provision for
termination and  Tax Ogher
Lepsl cases clasure provissons Tatal
Balance as ai | January 2022 0,430 E060 13,781 3,791 32,062
Charged'toredited) to profit or loss
Additional provisions recognised 1.073 857 1468 4,216 25,714
Unused amounts reversed {1611} (5] = [1,538) (d111)
Amounis used during the year {2 554) (1,839 (17,027)  (1,533) (22,955)
Foreign currency translation difference (195) "M (27 {440} {916)
Others (1.137) - ik (A37] (605)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 2004 3204 16819 4,162 20,189
2021 (USDDOD)
Provision for
fermination and Mher
Legal cases closure Tax  provisions Total
Balance as a | January 2021 7137 3849 7,906 2818 22310
Chargedyoredited) o profic or loss
Additional provisions recognised 3671 3774 0,799 2,235 20479
Unused amounis reversed (1,072} (3,935)  (38) (202} (5.247)
Amounts used during the vear (2100 (1,242) (1.895) (2.93%) (6285}
Foreign currency translation difference (394) (207) (1,008) - (1L611)
Others (304 2.821 (1,983) 1,878 2416
Balance as at 31 December 2021 09430 5060 13,781 3,791 32.062
Legal cases

The provision consists of the total amount provided to meet specific legal claims against the Group from external
parties. Management believes that after obtaining appropriate legal advice, the outcome of such legal claims will
nod substantially exceed the vabwe of the provision as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021,

Provision for termination and closure
The provision relates to the closure and termination charges along with other related costs which are expected 1o
be incurred for the closure of stores over the upcoming period.

Crther provisions include of ongoing assessments by the relevant authorities for open years dispute in relation 10
raxes, Zakat and MLST, Management believes that provision for probable future tax assessments is adequate based
upon previews years' tax examinations and past interpretations of the tax lows and that the position taken in 1ax
returns will be sustained upon examination by the relevant tax authorities (Note 33). The other provisions also
comprise of restructuring expenses and expected claims from external parties in relation 1o the Group's activities,
The management reviews these provisions on a vearly basis, and the allocated amount is adjusted according to
the latest developments, discussions and agreements with such parties,

16 TAX CLAIM CHARGES

Thee tax elaim charges is a non-recurring provision 1o settle an indirect tax claim relating to the historical period
2000-2017. Prior to 2016, restaurants not having a "twouristic’ status benefited from an exemption o sales tax, This
exemption law was repealed in 2016 pursuant to a change in tax law. The revised 1ax laws have been applied
going forward. In August 2022, the Group has entered into settlement agreements with the 1ax authorities (o setle
the tax claims for the period from 2005 10 2007 which has been adequately provided for during the vear.
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17  INCOME TAX, ZAKAT AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS PAYABLE

Chther taves pavable within one year comprize;
Imcoeme Tax

Zaka

Income tax and zakol pavable

Properiy and other taxes

Criher taxes payable

Income tax, zakat and other deductions payable

The movement of income tax and cakat payable is as follows:

At 1 January

Income tax and zakat of subsidiares
Payments

UOthers

At 3] December

18 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Balance as at | January
Share from net profit of the vear
Ciiher comprehensive mcome fem;
Foreign currency iranslation differences
Cher changes in non-coniralling nferesis;
Effects of acquisition of additional shares in a subsidiary
Cash dividends paid by subsidiaries
Todal other changes in non-condrolling mierests
Balance as at 31 Decem ber

19 SHARE CAPITAL

31 Decem ber 31 December
i palf |
LIS D (b LIS (sl
5193 G018
2307 3,310
7,500 G318
13 &0
5,542 2457
13,055 [2.614
2022 2021
USD 000 LIS 000
0318 5,353
B, 743 14,651
(1711 (69711
140 (3,905)
7500 g 118
LIS Dllars" 000
3 December 31 December
2022 2021
11,157 9,509
3,739 2491
32 48
(516) (65)
(3,216) (B26)
(3.732) {801)
11,186 11,157

Initially 10,000 shares were issued in cash and 168,462,662 shares were issued through a share-for-shore exchange
for the transfer of the Restaurants Business from Kuwail Food Company (Americana) K.5.C.C. with nominal
value of USD | exch per share. On 28 July 2022, the number of authorised shares changed from 168,472,662
shares to 8,423,633 100 shares as a result of share split prior 10 the Group®s [P0, resulting in the nominal value
per share changing from USD 1.00 per share to USD 0.02 per share. On 29 August 2022, Kuwait Food Company
(Americana) K.5.C.C. transferred its sharcholding 1o Adeptio AD Investments Lid As at 31 December 2022,
Americana Restaurants Imfemational PLC's authorised, issued and paid wp capital i USD 168472662
comprising of 8.423,633,100 shares with nominal value of USD 0L02 per share,

20 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Earnings

Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted eamings per share
iprofit for the vear attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent) LIST¥HMD

Number of ordinary shares ouistanding afier share split

Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable

For the vear ended  For the vear ended 31
31 Decem ber 2022 December 202 1
159,116 203,917

8,423,633, 100 EA423.633. 100
0.03077 0,02421

to Shareholders of the Parent Company (LSIN)
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21 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties represent shareholders who have representatives in the Boards of Directors, members of the
Boards of Directors, Senior Management and the companies which are controlled by the major sharchobders, In
the ordinary course of business, the Group has entered into arms-length transactions with related parties during
the vear. The fiollowing are the transactions and balances resulting from these transactions:

LS Dollars" 000
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
Transactions with fellow sahsidiaries
Purchases of raw materials 117,784 107,168
Interest income from loan to a related party 670 1,502
Interest income from short-term deposits held with a related party® 3 -
Investmient property renfal income 320 383
Dielivery and payvment suppori 1,134 587
Kev management personnel
Short term emplovee benefits 6,578 4,656
Termination benefits 125 113
Board of Directors” remunération 133 -
Due from related parties
LIS 000
Placeof 31 December 31 December
Mame INCOTporsion 2012 21
Fellow subsiciaries nrder the fmermediate Parem
Company
Americana Food Investment Group Company UAE - 457
Giuli Food Industries {Califomin Gorden) UAE - 68
Others 237 574
Entity controlled by a major shareholder:
Kshmi Development LLC UAE = ]
237 1,189
Due o related parties
LIS 000
Place of 31 December 31 December
MName Meorporation 2022 021
Fellow siwbridiaries under the fntermedioe Pargnt Compram:
Mational Food Industries Co. k54 i, IR0 7110
The Intemational Co. Tor Agricultural development (Fanm
Frites') Egvpt 7,040 6,261
Senyorita Co. for Food Industries Egvpt - 2,551
Gulfl Food Co. Americana LLC UAE 900 2295
Gulf Food Industries (California Garden) UAE 1,708 1467
Cairo Poultry Company Egvpt 1,575 1,213
Cihers a 162
Divisienr of the Former Paremt Compeany:
Kuwait Foods Divisions (Meat, Cake, Agencies) Kuwail 2,420 2282
Emsities controfled by a major shareholder:
Noon AD Holdings UAE 251 274
Moon Payments Digital Limiged K5A 14 68
Barakat Vegetables and Fruits Co. LLC UAE 159 -
Mshmi Development LLC UAE 186 =
21,841 23,683

“Cash and cash equivalents
The Group has a short-term deposit of USD 10,600 thousand as on 31 December 2022 (2021: NIL) with original
miaturity of 3 months or less with a financial institwtion (Zand Bank PISC), controlled by a major sharehalder.
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22 LOANTO A RELATED PARTY

LS Dallars (K6
31 December 31 December
2023 2021

Loan to o related party

Americany Foods Investments Group Company LLC . 64.000

Cm 21 March 2021, Americana Prime Investments Limited (an entity of the Group) entered into an agreement
with Americana Foods [nvestments Group Company LLC, a fellow subsidiary, 1o provide a loan of USD 64,000
thousand for o period of 5 years ending on 21 March 2026 and repavable in five equal annual instalments of USD
12,800 thousand. As at 31 December 2021, the loan carries an interest set o arms-length of LIBOR plus margin
payable quarterly commencing immediately after the drawdown date (i.e 21 March 2021}, Accordingly, USD
12,800 thousand has been classified as current and USD 51,200 thousand has been classified as non=current due
from related parties.

On 11 March 2022, Americana Prime Investments Limited entered into an additional agreement with Americana
Foods Investiments Group Company LLC to provide a loan of USLEY 36,000 thousand for a period of 4 vears ending
on 11 March 2026, the loan carrics an interest set at arms-length of LIBOR plus margin pavable quarterly
commencing immedimely after the drawdown date (i.e. 11 March 2022), On 20 April 2022, both related party
loains have been early settled i full (USD 100,000 thousand) by Americana Foods Investments Group Company
LLC.

23 REVENUES

Li5 Dodlars 000
2023 2021
Food and beverage 2,374,936 2,048 983
Investment properiies rental income EXONS 2. 764
2ITRS5AY 2,051,747
24 COST OF REVENUES
LS Dollars 000
2022 a1 P] |
Cost of inventory (Note 8) T6l 32X 623, 7H
Staft costs (Mote 20 130,104 121,101
Rovalties 127,077 105,773
Depreciation and amor isation TH,BRG 75,623
Rent (Mote 30§ 17,482 21612
(nhers 3,605 22.522
1,148,476 70,351
25 SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES
LIS Dollars" (800
2022 P |
Staff costs (Note 29) 225382 207,772
Depreciation and amortisation 121,860 117,308
Advertisement and business development 108475 20828
Home delivery and transporiation B6.948 T6.493
Urilities and communication 62,356 62,040
Maintenance and other operating expenses £8.528 48,52
Rent (Note 30) I1.535 23,317
Oihers 50,844 54,324
TIR 928 679,603
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26 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

LS Diollars" 00
2022 2021
Staff costs (Note 29) 108,375 05,593
Depreciation and amorisataon 18,963 15,698
Prowision for tax and legal claims 11,255 14,557
Fent {Mote 30) 0,094 8,965
Repairs and maintenance 6,280 5,867
Linilities £177 5175
Professional and legal 2111 4,146
Travel and accommodation 1,972 2118
(fice adminisirative 2,039 21146
Loss on forgign exchange 3717 2,905
Cihers 22,960 1%, 645
193,053 | 76,989
27 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
LIS Diollars" K
2022 2021
Property and equipment {Mote 5) 59,293 58.607
Intangible assets (Mole 7) 7105 6133
Right of use assets (Note 12) 152,76 143,243
Investment property (Note 6) 545 B4
219,700 208,629
28 FINANCE COST - NET
LIS Dollars' 000
022 2021
Finance mcome 3630 2 M08
Finance cosis on bank facilities 1594 1455
Finance costs on lease liabilities (Mote 12) 21.517 M0.713
Interest on employees” end of service benefit (Mote 13) 1,173 G50
Finance costs 24,584 23.118
Finance cost — net 20,945 20.910
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29 STAFF COSTS

LIS Duinllaers 000
2022 20210
Salaries and other benefits 455313 414,392
End of service benefits (Mote 13) Eg&l 10,074
463861 424 466
Allocation of s1aff costs:
LS Doklars i
2022 2021
Cost of revenues {Note 24) 130,104 P21, 101
Selling and marketing expenses (Mote 25) 225382 207,772
General and administrative expenses (Note 26) 108375 95 503
463801 424 464
30 RENT
LIS Dollars 000
2022 2021
Coost of revenues (Mot 24) 17,482 21,612
Selling and marketing expenses (Mote 25) 21,535 23,37
General and administrative expenses (Mote 26) 004 B.065
Vehicle rent included under home delivery cost (Note 25) 1,256 3,024
40 367 G018

31 INCOME TAX, ZAKAT, AND CONTRIBUTION TO KFAS

LIS Dollars 000

2022 2021
Current tax
Current tax of subsidiaries on taxable profits for the vear Tl 1{h, Gists
Zakm of subsidiaries 1,732 3,985
Total income tax and zakat B.743 14,651
KEFAS - 1081
Income tax, zakat, and KFAS 8743 13,733

The effective tax rate on 31 December 2022 is 3% (2021 Te),

Provision for income tax s made in accordance with relevant tax laws and regulations of countries where the
Group has business operations. Tax laws and regulations are subject to interpretations by the tax authorities, Tax
returns are filed periodically but the profits or losses declared for tax purposes remain provisional until such time
a5 the tax authorities examing the returns and the records of the taxpayer and a final assessment 15 issued.
Management belicves that provision for probable future tax assessments is adequate based upon previous vears’
lax examinations and past interpretations of the tax laws and that the position taken in lax retums is expected o
be adequate upon examination by the relevant tax authorities (Note 331
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3 INCOME TAX, ZAKAT, AND CONTRIBUTION TO KFAS (continued)

Reconciliation hetween the tax cxpense and profit or lac suedriplied by appdicable tax rare

The income tax rate applicable to the income of subsidiaries ranges from 1% to 34.5%. A reconcilistion between the

expected and the actual taxation charge is provided below

Profit before income tax, zakai. and KFAS

Theoretical tax charge at cach subsidiarses” statulory mte

Tax effect of items which are not deductible or assessable for taxation

purposes, g
- Income which is exempt from taxation
= Nom=decuctible expenses
= Income subject io withholding tax
= Carried forward losses
Taxable prafi

Current tax of subsidiaries on taxable profits for the year

Fakat of subsidiaries
KFAS

32 SUBSIDIARIES

2022 2021
R RIT LISDF 000
2716498 F¥2 140
2036 B, 754
(188.392) (55.502)
21,876 26,224
37,735 28,475
(T24) (1.721}
142,193 218616
7011 10,666
1,732 1,985
. 1081

The Group’s subsidianics overall ownership structure as at 31 December 2022 is as reflecied below. The
subsidiaries were transferred to the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 (Note 1)

Company's Name

Activity

Place of
imearparElion

Effective
Orwnership (%)
As mi 31
December 2022

Americana Bestaurants Investments Group Company LLC

Americana Kuwait Company Restaurams WILL
Americana Holding for UAE Restaurants LTD
Americana Holding for Egyptian Restaurants LT
Americana Company for Restaurants Holding LTD
Americana Holding for K5A Restaurants LTD
Americana Holding for Restaurants LTD

Kuwait Food Company Americana LLC

Egvptian Company for Iniernational Touristic Projects SAE

Egvptian Intemational Company for Food Industries SAE
Al Ahlia Restaurants Company LLC

United Food Company LLC

Americana Prime Investments Limited

Intermational Tourism Restaurants Company LLC

The Caspian International Restavrants Company LLP
Gulf & Arab World Bestaurant WLL

Bahriin & Kuwait Restaurant Co, WLL

Lebamese Intemational Touristic Projects Company LLC
Qatar Food Company WLL

Ras Bu abboud Trading Company W1LL

Almusharaka for Touristic Restaurants Services, General
Trading, Import & Export Company Lid.

Socidté Marecaine De Projects Towristiques SARL
Touristic Projects & International Restaurants Co.
iAmencann) LLC

Jordanian Restauramts Company for Fast Food LLC

The Iniemational Co. for World Restaurants Limited
Americana Restaurants India Private Limited

Holding Company Unied Amab Emmmes

Restauranis

Bouwait

Helding Company United Arab Emirates
Helding Company United Arab Emirates
Helding Company United Arab Emirates
Holding Company United Arab Emirates
Helding Company United Arab Emirates

Restranis
Restaurants
R estauranis
Restaurants
Oithers

(ithers

Restaurants
Restaurants
Restaurants
Restaurants
Hestaurants
Restaurants
Restaurants

Restaurants
Restauranis

Restaufants
Restaurants
Restaurants
(hers

United Arab Emirates
Egvpt

Egvpt

Saudi Arnbia

Saudi Arabia

United Arab Emirabes
Chman

Kazakhstan

Bahrain

Bahrain

Lebanon

Chatar

Quitar

Irag = Kurdistan
Morocco

Jordan

Jordan

United Araly Emirates
India

[ (M
bl
[ b
[ D%
[0
00
100
100
00 M
1002
1 00%
100
100 %%
1002
100
0400
4000
100%
1002
94.00%

0.00%
| (W%

6T 44%
67.44%
51.00%
100
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i3 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, OPERATING AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
US Dol dars" (4
31 December 31 December
1022 2021
Cantingent linbilities
Letters of guarantes 12,849 12,839

Taxes

The Group operntes in several different countries, Note 32 indicates the Group's structure and the counfries in
which it operates), and thus s operations are subject to various tvpes of taxes, The significant impacts of the
various types of taxes are concentrated in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and Arab Republic of Egypt as follows:

Arab Republic of Egyp:

The Group's operations in Egypt are subject to various tvpes of taxes, especially income tax, sakes tax, salary tax
and others,

Kingdom of Saudi Arebie:
The Growp’s operations are subject to Zakat in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The Group assesses the tax position of each subsidiary separately, in light of the years that have been inspected,
the inspection results, the received tax claims, the legal advice of s external tax advisor on these claims and the
legal situation of any existing dispute between the respective entity and the relevant official autherities with
respect to these claims. Further, The Group takes in consideration the contingent liabilities for the vears that have
not been mspected yet.

The tax claims and contingent tax labilities, at the Group's level, are smounted to USD 373 thousand as at 31
December 2022 (202 1: USD 84,628 thousand). Considering tax claims which fully settled previously in past vears
were significantly less than initial tax claims submitted by the Tax Administration, and based on the opinion of
the external consultants, the Group’s management believes that the provisions made for this purpose are adequaie
and sufficient

Limited Arab Emirates: fmpleseniation of UAE Corporatton Tax Law aod applicanion of TAS 12 Income Taves in
rilation fo the operadions in the UAE

On % December 2022, the UAE Ministry of Finance released Federal Decres-Law Mo, 47 of 2022 on the Taxation
of Corporations and Businesses (Corporate Tax Law or the Law] to enact a Federal corporste tax regime in the
UAE. The Law was previously gazetted on 10 October 2022, becoming law 15 days later. The Corporate Tax
regime will become effective for accounting perinds beginning on or after 1 June 2023, Generally, UAE
busimesses will be subject to a 9% corporate tax rate, while a rate of 0% will apply fo taxable income nof exceeding
a particular threshokld o be prescribed by way of a Cabinet Decision {expected 10 be AED 375,000 based on
mformation released by the Ministry of Fmance). Howewver, there are a number of significant decisions that are
vet o be finalised by way of a Cabinet Decision, including the threshobd mentioned above, that are critical for
entities to determine their tax status and the amount of tax due. Therefore, pending such important decisions by
the Cabinet, the Group has determined that the Law was not practically operational as at 31 December 2022, and
s0 not enacted or substantively enacted from the perspective of 1AS 12 — Income Taxes. The Group shall continue
e monitor the timing of the issuance of these critical Cabinet Decisions 10 determine its tax status and the
applicability of 1AS 12 = Income Taxes. In relation to its operations in the UAE, the Group is currently in the
process of assessing the possible impact on its consolidated financial statements, both from current and deferred
tax perspective, once the Low becomes substantively enacted.

LS Diollars (dd

31 December 31 December
2023 2021

Operating fease commitments - Lessee

Less than one year 34,781 45 481
34,781 45481

Capital commitments

Letters of credit 6,102 12,719

Projects in progress 9,209 15,8590
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34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets

Fimancial asvets af amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalents (Mote [0}

Loan to a related party (Note 22)

Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments. advances to
suppliers) (Mofe )

Dz from reloted parties {Mote 21}

Finaneial assets af fair value
Derivative financial instrument

Financial liabilities

Cher financial Nabdites af amortized cost

Trade and other payables (excluding value added tax pavable and
uncamed imcome) (Note 14)

Bank facilities (Mote 11)

Lease liabilities (Nobe 12)

35 NET DEBT RECONCILIATION

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 10)
Bank facilities (MNote 11)

Lease labilities (Mote 12)

Net debi

Cash and cash equivalents
Met debt — variable inferest rates
Met debt

175 Dolkars' (i
31 December 31 December
2012 2021
04,5640 173,504
- CER
B7.39] 60,046
237 1.180
ATLI88 204 210
11,331 G300
AR3E1Y 308,621
369647 335212
18,592 7.073
434,759 384 599
822,998 T16 884
L5 Diollars 000
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
J04, 560 173,996
(18.592) (7,073)
{434, 759) {384,590}
{148,791} (217 .676)
U5 Dhllars" 000
3 December 31 December
1z} 2021
34,560 173,994
(453.351) [391.672%
(148,751 (217.676)

35



AMERICANA

Americana Restaurants International PLC RESTAURANTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINASNCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR-EMNDED 3] DECENMBER X022
{continued)

35 NET DEBT RECONCILIATION {continued)

S Dpllass"000
Linbilities from financin
a:livili:& Oilier assels
Cashbank
Leases overdralt Tatal
Met debt a5 at 1 Janoary 2022 {3B4.599) 166923 (217.676)
Foreign cumrencies transkation
St 18,730 13152 30,882
Others (13,160) - (13, 160)
Principal elements of lease paymenis 172.2M - 172,23
Giain on renl concessions 067 - 66T
Acquisition of leases (118,688) - {218.688)
Cash flows, net - 106,893 106,893
Met debt as at 31 December 2022 (434,759) 285,968 (148,791
LS Diollars” 000
Liabilities from financing
activities Chher asselts
Leases  Cash/bank overdraft Togal
Met debe as at 1 January 202 | {403 439) 171,784 [23],655)
Foreign cumrencies translation
differences 3,128 (4.275) (1,147}
(hers (15,7423) - (18,742)
Principal elements of leose payments 160,363 - [ 60, 363
Giain on renl concessions 6,978 - 6,978
Acquisition of leases (132.88T) - (132,8B87)
Cash Nlows, net - {5B6) (586)
Met debt as at 31 December 2021 (384 5640) L6, 921 (217.676)

36 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group is organized into operating segments based on geographical location, The resulis are reported to the
top executive management in The Group. In addition, the revenuwe, profil. asscts, and linbilities are reported on a
geographic basis and measured in accordanee with the same accounting basis used for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, There are three major reporiable segments: the Major Gulf Cooperation Council
countries which include KSA, Kuwait and UAE, Lower Gulf countries (comprising of Qatar, Oman and Bahrain)
and Mormh Africa (Egypt and Morocco). All other operating scgments that are nod reporiable segments are
combined under “Others” {Kazakhstan, Irsg, Lebanon and Jordan).

The segments are concentrated in the restaurants sector which include operating all kinds of restaurants,
representing imtemational franchises.

Following is the segment information which is consisient with the intermal reporting presented to management for

the vears ended;

Repartable sepments Intercompany transactions Total
11 Deceniber 31 Decenber 11 December
HRevenues 2012 2021 20212 20210 2022 2021
LS00 LS00 LIS 000
Major GCC 1,604,514 1,365,447 2 (1,433 1,604,514 1,364,014
Liower Gulf 14,426 251,574 (82,761} (32.906) 261 665 218,668
North Africa 294,661 273,600 - S 204,661 371601
Chhers 217.707 195 464 - - 217,707 195 464
Total 2,431,308 2086086 (52.761) (34,339) 2378547 2051747

36



AMERICANA

Americana Restaurants International PLC RESTAURANTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR-ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
(continued)

36 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Repartable sepmenis
31 December
Met profils 022 2021
LISD 000
Major GCC 151,268 179,560
Lower Gulf 21,360 16,225
Morth Africa (26,217} §.061
Others 28,014 21,199
Taotal 275,425 225,045
Unallocated:
Income tax, zakat and other deductions (B, 743} (15,732)
Losses of foreign exchange (3.727) (2.905)
Net profit for the yvear 262,955 206,408
31 December 2022 LISD® 04}

Major GCC Lower Gulf Morth Africa Oihers Total
Assels 941382 141,685 131738 124.742 1,340,547
Liakilities 741,931 109,932 124,415 68,518 1,044,796

31 December 2021 USD* (00

Major GCC Lower Gulf Morth Africa Cithers Total
Assels 685,325 139,580 145,54 117,019 1,087,914
Liahilities 648,573 105,210 123,324 T1.095 48,202

Below is the analysis of the revenue (before eliminations) and related non-current assets for the significant
geographical locations:

2022 Usironn
UAE K5A i Egvym
Revenues 703,648 527,585 373,281 258,424
Mon=current assetls 197, 20K 191,575 107,247 5,153
2021 UsD 000
UAE KSA K uwait Egypt
Revenues SOR.4535 434,869 330,689 247,11
Mon-current assels 1] 600 134,967 43,078 an.g52

37  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 22 Febryary 2023, the Board of Directors propased cash dividends of USD 00123 per share amounting fo
USD 103.5 million based on the resulis for the year ended 31 December 2022,
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